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Directors

Executive Directors

Brian Cooke

Chairman

Aged 72, he Joined the company in 1960
atter attending foundry college and
serving an engineenng apprenticeship He
worked in all departments of the company
and was appointed a director 1n 1966,
becoming joint managing director in 1968
and managing director tn 1970 He ceased
to be chief executive In 2007 He has been
Chairman since 1983

Dawvid Gawthorpe

Chief Executive Officer

Aged 50, he joined the company in 1984
and became local technical director at
Brownhills 1n 1994 He was appointed
a director in 2003 and became chief
executive in April 2007 and 1s the director
with environmental and human resource
responsibiity

Steve Mant

Finance Director

Aged 36, he Joined the company
June 2010 and was appointed company
secretary and finance director on
1 November 2010 Pnor to joining the
company he had been working for BDO
LLP specialising w1 marufacturing,
international and listed companies

Mark Lewis

Managing Director — CNC Speedwell Ltd
Aged 48, he joined CNC Speedwell in
1990 becoming therr managing director
In 18968 He has overseen the machining
requirements for the group and was
appointed a director in 2003

Graham Cooper

Managing Director — Willam Lee Ltd
Aged 58, he joined Wilham Lee in 1977
becoming operations director there In
2003 and their managing director in 2005,
when he was appointed to the man board

Adam Vicary

Managing Director — Brownhills

Aged 44, he joined the company in
Septermber 2010 as joint managing
director and was appointed to the main
board in Apnt 2012

Non-Executive Directors

Gerard Wainwnght

Non-executive Director

Aged 62, he was appointed a director
In 1998 and 1s the sentor independent
director He has been chief executive of a
wide range of manufactunng companies
for over twenty-five years together with
international expenience He 1s charman
of the remuneration committee and a
member of the audit and nomnation
committees

Paul King

Non-executive Director

Aged 75, he was apponted a director
in 1998 and 1s an independent director
He retired from practice as a partner
with Coopers & Lybrand and has been
a member of the boards of a number
of comparies He 18 charman of the
audit committee and is regarded as the
financial expert of that committee and s
also a member of the remuneration and
nomination commitiees

Alec Jones

Non-executive Director

Aged B0, he was appointed a director in
Apni 2012 and1s an independent director He
was a partner in PricewaterhouseCoopers
for 27 years until his retirement In 2010 He
1s @ member of the audit, remuneration and
norminatich committees
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Chairman’s Statement

Statement of full

vyear results

It 15 pleasing to report that turnover
increased from £105 4 milhon to a record
£126 3 millien Profits increased from
£15 5m to £23 1 million

It must be noted that the profits include
£10m credit following settlement of a
histonc creditor, £07 milion credit for
lcelandic bank receipts and £0 3 milon
credit in respect of the defined benefit
pension schemes

The profits are a record for the company
and are as a result of our continued
investment In up-to-date plant and
machimng equipment

Foundry Production

The new warehouse at Brownhills cpened
n January and it is proving beneficial in
improving our logistics and stock control
The total cost of the warehouse project
was £5 5 million which included extra car
parking and an improved site entrance
The building can in future be extended for
machining capacity The foundnes are all
now well equipped

Foundry production at Castings
Brownhills and Willam Lee has been
satisfactory throughout the year We stll
have some 20% spare capacity and we
are maintatning efforts to fill this with more
work from new and existing customers In
this respect 1t 1s hoped that the European
truck industry will return to pre 2008 levels
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CNC Speedwell

CNC once again has enjoyed an improved
year and a further £5 4 millon has been
invested In new machines for existing and
new projects

It 15 pleasing to report we have obtained
several contracts to machine and
assemble products for the automobile
industry These contracts will hopefully
come into production during June and
Juty this year and will add to the turnover
and profits of the company

The logistics to supply castings to CNC
have been improved which has released
space at CNC to be used for more future
production It 15 expected, as orders
increase, further Investment will be
required at CNC, but as yet the figures are
unknown

Directors

Tony Smuth retred as a non-executive
director from 30 March 2012 | wish to
thank him for his many years service at
Castings plc He |ocined the company
in 1962 as a tranee and progressed to
Joint Managing Director before retinng in
2004 He then became a non-executive
director where his foundry knowledge and
ndustnal relations expenence was a great
benefit to the company We wish him and
his wife Margaret a happy retirement

Alec Jones was appointed to the Board on
3 Apnl 2012 as a non-executive director
Alec 1s a chartered accountant and was
a partner n PncewaterhouseCoopers
for 27 years until his retrement in 2010
Dunng that time he was a lead partner on
many major clents and a member of the
global management team responsible for
clents and markets from 2003 to 2008
He was the leader of the emerging market
practices from 2008 to 2010

Adam Vicary, who joined the company in
September 2010 was appointed to the
board on 3 April 2012 His expenience in
lean manufactunng and production will
add strength to the board

Dividend

I am pleased to report the drectors
recommend an ncrease In the final
dividend to 884 pence per share This,
together with an increased Intenm
dividend, gives a total for the year of 11 75
pence per share

Qutlook

It 15 difficult to forecast the future because
of the well reported economic problems
in Europe The company continues to be
In a strong position to take advantage of
any upturn and has the ability to manage
a downturn In demand The financial
strength of the company 1s important to be
able tc make quick Investment decisions
and at the same time secure dividend
payments for our shareholders

In conclusion, | would agan like to thank
all our employees for ther contribution
to the success of the company and 1t 1s
hoped any economic problems will not
affect us as they did in 2008/¢

B J COOKE
Chairman
20 June 2012




Business and Financial

Review

Revenue has increased by 20% to €126 3
million of which 66% was exported

The despatch weight of castings to third
party customers was 57,200 tonnes, being
an mcrease of 6,600 tonnes from the
previous year

Revenue from the machinist operation,
CNC Speedwell, increased by 3% during
the year

During the year we have received £0 69
milkon from the administrators of the
UK subsidiznes of the icelandic banks
This bnngs the total sums recewved to-
date to £275 milion which 1s £089
million in excess of the onginal estimate
of recoverable amounts Given the
uncertanty over the quantum and
trming of any possible further receipts,
no allowance has been made for future
recoverable amounts

The level of finance iIncome agan reflects
the prevailing low interest rates durning the
year

Operationally the group generated £215
milion 1n cash (after tax payments)
which, after investment of £12 6 million in
property, plant and eguipment and £4 8
million In dividend payments, resulted in
an increase N cash of £4 1 millonto £17 8
milhon at the balance sheet date,

The pension valuation showed a slight
improvement in the surplus, on an |AS 19
basis, to £6 8 milion This continues not
to be recognised on the balance sheet due
to the restnction of recognition of assets

Qverall the group returned a profit
before taxation of £231 milion for
the year This includes a £03 rmillion
credit In respect of the defined benefit
pension schemes (as set out In note 6)
In accordance with IAS 19, £0 7 mithon
credit for lcelandic bank receipts and
€1 millon credit following the settlement
of an histonc creditor position

The drirectors are recommending a final
dividend that wi! be pad in August
which, with the interim dwidend paid
In January, will result tn the return of
£5 1 million to shareholders
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Directors’

Report

Annual Report and the
Audited Accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2012.

Trading activities

Castings PLC supplles spheroidal
graphite won castings to a vanety of
manufacturing industries from its highly
mechanised foundnes at Brownhills
Willam Lee Limited supplies spheroidal
graphite wron castings from ODronfield,
Sheffield and CNC Speedwell Limited
is a machining operation There were
no significant changes i the prncipal
actvities of these companies durnng
the year

The progress of these companies dunng
the year I1s recorded in the accounts, the
Chairman’s Statement on page 3 and
the Business and Financial Review on
page 4 A Review of Prnincipal Risks and
Uncertainties 1s given on pages 9 and 10

Dividends

An intenm dividend of 2 91 pence per
share was paid in January 2012 The
directors now recommend a fina!l dwvidend
of 884 pence per share payable on
17 August 2012 to shareholders on the
register on 20 July 2012, making a total
distnbution of 11 75 pence for the year

Share capital

The company's capital consisis of
43,632,068 (2011 - 43,632,068) ordinary
shares of 10 pence each with voting nghts
There are no restrictions on voting nghts

There are no restnctions on the transfer
of shares the company and In
particular there are no imitations on the
holding of shares and no requirements
to obtain the approval of the company,
or of other shareholders, for a transfer
of shares

n

Beneficial owners of shares who have
been nominated by the registered holder
of those shares to recewve information
nghts under section 146 of the Companies
Act 2006 are reguired to direct all
communications to the registered holder
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of therr shares rather than to the company's registrar, Captta Registrars, or to the company
directly

Subject to legrslation and to any resolution of the company in general meeting, all unissued
shares are at the disposal of the board who may allot, grant options over or otherwise dispose
of them to such persons, on such terms and at such times as it may think fit

The company 1s authonsed to purchase its own shares

Directors

The directors of the company are hsted on page 2 and in addition A J Smith was a
non-executive until 31 March 2012

The Iinterests of directors in the ordinary share capital at the beginming and end of the year
were

Beneficial Holdings

2012 201
B J Cooke 1,956,636 1,955,386
A J Srmith (resigned 31 March 2012) 103,079 103,079
G B Wainwnght59,261 59,261 59,261 58,261
D J Gawthorpe 29,379 28,296
A Vicary 12,000 -
G Cooper 8,000 8,000
M A Lewis 3,025 3,025
S J Mant 1,000 -
C P King — -
A N Jones - -

There have been no changes in the shareholdings of directors since the year end

The following directors retire under the provisions of the Articles of Association and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election

D J Gawthorpe — by rotation
A Vicary — having been appointed since the last Annual General Meeting
A N Jones - having been appointed since the last Annual General Meeting

The unexpired pencd of the contracts of service for B J Cooke, S J Mant,
D J Gawthorpe, M A Lews, G Cooper and A Vicary 1S one year Mr A N Jones,
G B Wanwnght and C P King do not have contracts of service

The company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of s
directors which were in force during the year and exist at the date of this report

There are no agreements between the company and its directors or employees
providing for compensation for loss of office or employment that occurs because of a
takeover bid

The number of directars 1s not subject to any maximum but shall not be less than two The
company may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be director and the board has the
power to appoint any person to be director, but any director so appointed shall retire from office
at the next Annual General Meeting A director i1s not required to held any share qualification

One-third of the directors retire from office at every Annuat General Meeting and are eligible
for reappointment
The board considers that the performance of those directors proposed for re-election

continues to be effective, that they remain independent in judgement and that they
demonstrate a strong commitment toc their role




Directors’ Report

continued

The business of the company 1s managed by the board who may exercise all such powers
of the company as are not by legislation or by the company’s Articles required to be
exercised tn general meeting The board may make such arrangements as 1t thinks fit for
the management and transaction of the company's affarrs and may for that purpose appoint
local boards, managers and agents and delegate to them any of the powers of the board
{other than the power to borrow and make calls on shares) with power to sub-delegate

Other than the directors' service contracts the directors have nc interests in any other

contract of the business

Substantial shareholdings

The directors have been notfied that the following investors, including directors, held
interests in 3% or more of the company’s Issued share capital at 20 June 2012

Aberforth Partners' Clients

Deita Lloyd Asset Management NV
Ruffer LLP

B J Cooke

Hamstall Investments Inc

Rathbene Investment Management Ltd

Number %
6,736,285 154
5,549,018 127
4,300,667 99
1,956,636 45
1,949,900 45
1,600,000 37

During the pened between 31 March 2012 and 20 June 2012, the directors have not been
notfied of any changes to the shareholdings set out above

Business review

The Charman's Statement on page
3, the Business and Financial Review
on page 4, the Corporate Governance
Statement on page 13, and the Notes to
the Accounts on pages 24 to 43 provide
detalled information relating to the
group, the operatton and development
of the business and the results and
financial position for the year ended
31st March 2012

Future prospects

Future prospects are dealt with in the
Chairman’s Statement on page 3

Special business

There will be two items of Special Business
at the Annual General Meeting

Directors’ authonty to aliot shares
Approval will be sought for a special
resoluticn to renew the authonty given to
the directors to allot shares in the company
The present authonty was granted on

16th August 2011 and under the
Comparies Act must be renewed at least
every five years Authonty will also be
sought from shareholders to allow the
directors to 1ssue new shares for cash to
persons other than to exising members
up to a maximum nominal amount of
£218,160, being approximately 5% of the
current 1ssued share captal

In any three year penod no more than
7 5% of the 1ssued share capita! will be
1ssued on a pre-emptive basis

Both authorities are to be for the period
commencing on the date of passing of the
Resolution untd 16th August 2015 but will
be put to annual shareholder approval
The proposed Resolutions are set out as
items 8 and 9 1in the Notice of Meeting

Authonty to purchase own shares

At the Annual General Meeting t1n 2011,
the board was gwen authonty to
purchase and cancel up to 4,358,844
of its own shares representing 9 99% of
the company's existing shares, through
market purchases on The London Stock

Exchange The maxmum price to be
paid on any exercise of the authonty was
restricted to 105% of the average of the
middle market quotation for the shares
for the five dealing days immediately
preceding the day of a purchase The
miimum price which may be paid for
each share 1s 10 pence

The current authonty to make market
purchases expires at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting The directors are
now seeking the approval of shareholders
for the renewal of this authonty upon
the same terms, save that the authonty
IS now sought to allow the company to
purchase and cancel up to 4,358,844
of its own shares, representing 9 99%
of its 1ssued share capital at 31st March
2012 The authonty 1s sought by way of
a special resolution, details of which are
also included in the notice of the meeting
as tem 10 This authonty will only be
exercised If the directors, in the light of
market conditions prevailing at the tme,
expect it to result in an ncrease In future
earnings per share, and {f 1t 1s in the best
interests of shareholders generally
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Fixed assets

The market value of the group’s interests
in land cannot be accurately established
without obtaining a revaluation of all the
land and buldings owned by the group
The directors consider that although a
revaluation would show the market value
of the land and buldings to be in excess
of book value, this excess would not be
significant i the context of group trading
and would not justfy the expense of a
revaluation

Employee involvement

Employees are informed weekly of
production levels and the relative
production performance Similarly, they
are kept informed of any factor affecting
the group and the industry generally

Therr nvolvement 1n  the group's
performance 1s encouraged by means
of a production bonus and at the time of
annual wages and salaries review they
are made aware of all economic factors
affecting the previous year's performance
and the outlook for the ensuing year

Further detaills of employee involvement
are given under the Corporate Social
Responsibility section on pages 11 and 12

Health and safety

As required by legislation, the group's
policy for securing the health, safety and
welfare at work of all employees has been
brought to their notice In addition, safety
committees hold regular meetings

Supplier payment policy

The group’s policy 15 to settle the terms
of payment with suppliers when agreeing
the terms of each transaction, ensure that
suppliers are made aware of the terms of
payment and abide by them provided the
supplier complies with all relevant terms
and condittons The group does not follow
any code or standard on payment practice
Individual operating businesses within
the group are responsible for estabhshing
appropriate policies with regard to the
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payment of therr suppllers The number of
days’ purchases outstanding for payment
by the group at the year end was 51
(2011 -71)

Financial instruments

Details of the use of financial instruments
by the group are contained in note 19 and
In note 4(a) In the Notes to the Accounts

Articles of Association

Any amendments to the Articles of
Association have to be adopted by
the members by a special resolution in
general meeting The current articles were
adopted In August 2011

Auditors

The auditors, BDO LLP, have indicated
therr wilingness to continue in office
A resolution proposing therr reappointment
as auditors of the company and
authonsing the directors to determine
theirr remuneration will be submitted at the
Annual General Meeting

Each of the persons who are directors at
the date when this report was approved
confirms that so far as each of the
directors 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit
nformation of which the group's auditors
are unaware, and each of the directors has
taken all steps that he ought to have taken
as a director to make himself aware of any
relevant audit information (as defined) and
to establish that the auditors are aware of
that information

Significant agreements

There are no significant agreements to
which the company 1s party that take
effect, alter or terminate upon a change
of control of the company following a
takeover bd

Principal risks and
uncertainties
Pancipal nsks and uncertainties are set

out on page 9 and In note 4(a} in the Notes
to the Accounts

Corporate Governance

Detals of the group's corporate
governance policies are dealt with on
page 13

Cautionary statement

Under the Companies Act, a company's
directors’ report 1s required, among other
matters, to contain a farr review by the
directors of the group’s business through
a balanced and comprehensive analysis of
the development and performance of the
business of the group and the position of
the group at the year end, consistent with
the size and complexity of the business

The Directors’ Report set out above,
including the Charman's Statement,
the Pnncipal Risks and Uncertainties
and Corporate Social Responsibility
incorporated into it by reference (together,
the Directors' Report), has been prepared
solely to provide additiona! information
to shareholders to assess the company's
strategies and the potential for those
strategies to succeed The Directors’
Report should not be relied upon by any
other party or for any other purpose

The Directors’ Report (as defined) contains
certain forward looking statements These
statements are made by the directors
n good fath based on the information
avalable to them up to the time of
theirr approval of this report and such
statements should be treated with caution
due to the Inherent uncertainties, including
both economic and business nsk factors,
underlying any such forward {ooking
information




Directors’ Report

continued

Approval of Directors’
Report and Responsibility
Statement

Each of the persons who 15 a director at
the date of approval of this report confirms
that to the best of his knowledge

{(a) each of the group and parent financial
statements, prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU and UK
Accounting Standards respectively, gives
atrue and fair view of the assets, habilities,
firancial position and profit or loss of the
1ssuer and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whole, and

(b) the Charman's Statement, Business
and Financial Review and Directors’
Report includes a far review of the
development and performance of the
business and the position of the company
and the undertakings included in the
consohdation taken as a whole, together
with a descnption of the pnncipal nsks and
uncertainties that they face

By order of the board

B J COOKE /43“:49/@,
e

Chairman
20 June 2012
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Review of Principal

Uncertainties

Risks and

Risk
In common with all trading business, the

group 1s exposed to a variety of nsks in the
conduct of its nomnal business operations

The group maintaing a range of insurance
policies against major identified insurable
nsks, including (but not imited to) those
related to business interruption, damage
to property and equipment, products and
employment

Whilst it 1s not possible to either completely
record or to quantify every matenal nsk
that the group faces, below 1S a surnmary
of those nsks that the directors believe are
most significant to the group’s business
and could have a matenal impact on future
performance, causing it to differ matenally
from expected or histonc achieved results

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange rate nsk 1s sometimes
partially hedged using forward foreign
exchange contracts Translational nsk
anses as a consequence of applying
different exchange rates to net assets
denominated 1N currencies other than
stering and, not being an exposure
that results in an actual cash flow, s
not hedged

Operational and
commercial risks

The group's revenues are pnncipally
denved from commercial vehicle and
automotive markets Both markets,
and therefore group revenues, can
be subject to vanations In patterns of
demand Commercial vehicle sales are
linked to technological factors {eg
emission  legislations) and economic
growth Passenger vehicle sales are
influenced, inter aha, by consumer
preferences, incentives and the availability
of consumer credit

Annual Report

2012

Market competition

Automotive and commercial vehicle
markets are, by ther nature, highly
competitive, which has histoncally led to
deflationary pressure on selling pnces
This pressure 15 most pronounced m
cycles of lower demand A number of
the group's customers are also adopting
global sourcing models with the am to
reduce bought out costs Whilst there can
be no guarantee that business will not be
lost on price, we ara confident that we can
remain competitive

Customer concentration,
programme dependencies
and relationships

The loss of, or deteroration In any single
customer relationship could have a
matenal impact on the group's resuits

Equipment

The group operates a number of specialist
pieces of equipment, including foundry
furnaces, moulding hnes and CNC milling
machines which, due to manufacturing
lead ttmes, would be difficult to replace
sufficiently quickly to prevent major
interruption and possible loss of business
in the event of unforeseen faillure Whilst
this nsk cannot be entirely mitigated
without uneconomic duplicaton of all key
equipment, all key equipment s maintained
to the highest possible standards and
inventonies of strategic equipment spares
raintaned The facihies at Brownhills
and Dronfield have similar equipment and
work can be transferred from cone location
to another very quickly

Suppliers

Although the group takes care to ensure
alternative sources of supply remamn
available for matenals or services on
which the group’s businesses are ¢ntically
dependent, this s not always possible
to guarantee without nsk of short-term
business disruption, additional costs
and potental darnage to relationships
with key customers

Commodity and energy
pricing

The pnncipal metal raw matenals used
by the group’s businesses are steel scrap
and various alloys The most important
alloy raw matenal inputs are premium
graphite, magnesium ferrosiicon, nickel
and molybdenum Wherever possible,
prices and quantities (except steel) are
secured through long-term agreements
with suppliers In general, the nsk of
price inflation of these materials resides
with the group’s customers through
price adjustment clauses The group 1s
exposed 1o pnce level changes in copper
and molybdenum, which have seen
dramatic increases in recent years Where
possible, the group seeks to mitigate the
financial impact through the application
of surcharges, although the success
of this approach vanes by customer
Energy contracts are locked In for at least
twelve months, although renegotiation
nsks remain at contract matunty dates
but agamn this 1s mitigated through the
applicaton of surcharges However,
energy contracts relate to specified usage
and if not obtained can result in penalties

Information technology
and systems reliability

The group is dependent on its information
technology (“IT") systems to operate
s business efficientty, without falure
or interruption  Whilst data within key
systems is regularly backed up and
systems subject to virus protection, any
failure of back-up systems or other major
IT interruption could have a disruptive
effect on the group’s business

Short-term deposits

Adwvice Is taken as to where to deposit
funds, usually banks and bulding
societies Only highly rated nstitutions
are used However, institutions can be
downgraded before matunty therefore
possibly placing these deposits at nsk
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Review of Principal

Uncertaintie s contmued

Risks and

Product quality and
liability

The group's businesses expose it to certain
product kability nsks which, in the event of
tailure, could give nse to matenal financial
habiiies Whilst it 1s a policy of the group
tc Iimit its financial hability by contract in
all long-term agreements {"LTAs™), it is not
always possible to secure such hmitations
In the absence of LTAs The group's
customers do require the maintenance of
demanding quality systems to safeguard
against quality-related nsks and the group
maintains appropnate externa! quality
accreditations The group mantans
nsurance for publc lability-related claims
but does not insure against the nsk of
product warranty or recall

Environmental risk

The group's businesses are subject to
comphance with many different laws and
requirements 1n the UK, Europe, North
America and elsewhere Great care IS
made to act responsibly towards the
environment to achieve compliance with all
relevant laws and to establsh a standard
above the mmimum level required Whilst
the group’s manufacturing processes are
not generally considered to provide a high
nsk of harm to the environment, a major
control fallure leading to enwvironmental
harm could give nse to a matenal financial
hability as well as significant harm to the
reputation of our business

Pension scheme funding

The farr value of the assets and habilities
of the group's defined benefit pension
schemes is substantial As at 31st March
2012 the schemes were In surplus on an
IAS 19 basis Further details are set out In
note 6 to the accounts The potential nsks
and uncertainties are mitigated by careful
management and continual monitonng of
the schemes and by appropnate and timely
action to ensure as far as possible that the
defined benefit pension liabilites cdo not
increase disproportionately The company
works closely with the scheme trustees
and specialist advisers in managing the
nherent nsks of such schemes

The schemes were closed to future
accruals from 6th April 2009 which only
leaves past service habilities to be funded

Trade credit

The ability of our supplers to mamtan
credit insurance on the greup and its
pnncipal operating businesses 1S an
important 1ssue  We have excellent
relationships with our suppliers and we
continue to work closely with them on a
normal commercial basis A reduction in
the level of cover avaiabte to suppliers
may impact on our trading relationship
with them and may have a sigrificant
effect on cash flows
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Corporate Social

Responsibility

General

As a ilong-standing and principled
company, we place great mportance
on our responsibilities to all our key
stakeholders, whether shareholders,
employees, customers, supphers or the
communities n which we operate The
group works hard to meet the legitmate
expectations of these stakeholder groups
whilst at the same time seeking to fulfil
our objective of creating outstanding
and enduring value through commercial
success based on supernor performance

The group has a network of pelictes and
strategies through which we seek to
ensure that our values form part of the
culture of each of our operations

The environment

We recognise our duty and responsibility
towards protecting the environment
wherever we conduct our business and
stnve to adopt the highest standards of
environmental practices with the am of
minimising the impact of our commercial
activities on the surrounding environment
Thus, we am to meet, and wherever
possible exceed, the standards demanded
by apphcable environmental legslation
and operate a policy of effecting continual
improvement 1n all of our processes that
have the potential to impact the environment

Specifically, the company 1s committed to

® Implementing and mamintaning an
Environmental Management System
in accordance with the I1SO 14001
standard

® Establishing procedures to review the
impact of current or new activities or
pracesses on the environment

® Reviewing audit resuits and imtiating
corrective actton to address any
deficiencies found within the group'’s
environmental management system,
policy, objectives or targets

® Using techniques to avord, reduce or
control pollution
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& Complying with all relevant legal
regurements,  process, planning
and discharge authonsations, as
appropnate tc its operations

® Pursuing best practice technigues in
the use of energy and raw matenals

® Encouraging the beneficial reuse,
recycling and recovery of its waste
products

@ Ensunng that environmental 1ssues
are considered when making
decisions to invest in capital plant
and in the planning and controlling of
manufacturing processes

® Promoting environmental awareness
throughout the group and ensuring
that personnel whose activities have
the potential to cause a significant
impact on the environment receive
appropnate traning

® Ensunngthatsuppliers and contractors
adopt environmental practices on site
that are compatible with our exacting
environmental standards

® Establishing and maintaining adequate
contingency procedures and plans to
deal effectively with any accidental
discharge or emission of pollutants

® Communicating our Enwrcnmental
Policy Staterment to any persons
working on our behalf and any
interested parties

The group demands that all actvities
and senices will comply with applicable
faws and regulations and that all
substances and matenals will be
continually reviewed to ensure that only
those that have the lowest impact on the
environment wil be used In additicn,
where 1t 1s possible for us to assess, only
waste disposal companies and facilities
whera the level of operational control
and environmental compliance meets
legislative requirements are used by our
businesses Noise from operations Is kept
to a level below legislative requirements
to ensure the mimmum of nuisance to
the local environment Appropnate and

adequate environmental information and
training is given to all employees and
contractors

Both of our foundry sttes are 180
14001 2004 accrecited The group's
practices and procedures are subject to
regular environmentat audits by external
consuitants

The group has also in place an energy
policy which requires each company to
make continuing efforts to achieve the
following objectives

@® To monitor and record energy and
water consumption

® To reduce the consumption of
fosstl fuels and utiise energy
from sustanable sources where
practicable

® To examine ways of reducing water
consumphion

® To promote energy awareness
amongst employees and contractors

® To wentfy and implement energy
saving measures and practise enengy
efficiency throughout all group
premises, plant and equipment

® To INcorporate environmentaily
sensitive designs Into both new and
refurbished bulldings

® TJo target a reducton In energy
consumption in lne with the
Government’s goal of cutting carbon
dioxide emissions to counter the
threat of climate change

Employees

The group's policy I1s to employ people who
embody 1ts core values of commitment
and excellence These values apply to
all employees regardless of senionty or
position, ncluding directors

The group seeks to commuricate with
its employees m a structured open
manner, including regular bnefings and
dissemination of relevant information on
the group and business unit

Employees are informed weekly of
production levels and the relative

11




12

Corporate Social

continued

Responsibility

production performance Similarly, they
are kept infermed of any factor affecting
the group and the industry generally

Thewr involvement in  the group's
performance 1s encouraged by means
of a production bonus and at the time of
annual wages and salanes review they
are made aware of all economic factors
affecting the previous year’s performance
and the outlook for the ensuing year

Recognising the demands of our
customers and our strategy, the group's
policy 15 to recrut the best available
people and to invest in ther training and
development to enable a high level of
retention In this regard, we are committed
to equality, judging applications for
employrment neither by race, nationality,
gender, age, disability, sexual onentation
nor political bias

The group gives full consideration to
employment applications by disabled
persons where they can adequately
fulfit the requirements of the position If
necessary, we endeavour to retran any
employee who becomes disabled during
their period of employment with the group

Health and Safety

The board regards the promotion of
health and safety measures as a mutual
objective for management and employees
at all levels It 1s our policy to de all that
1s practicable to prevent personal nury
and damage to property and to protect
everyone from foreseeable hazards,
including third parties in so far as they
come Into contact with the group's
activities In particular, we aim to fulfil our
responsibilities

® To provide and mamntan safe and
healthy working conditions complying
with all statutory condiions

® To provide traiming and instruction to
enable employees to perform ther
work safely and efficiently

® To make avallable all necessary safety
dewvices and protective equipment and
to supervise ther use

#® To maintain a constant and continuing
interest in health and safety matters
applicable to the group's activities,
consulting and involving employees
wherever possible

The group has clearly defined health
and safety polcles and we operate
a system of stnict reporting Regular
audits of health and safety at the group’s
manufacturing operations are camed out
using independent agencies who make
recommendations for improvements
to achieve best practice wherever
appropnate The group's health and safety
policy Is regularly reviewed and modified
as circumstances and expernences dictate

The group encourages the maintenance ot
consistent high standards and each site is
required to develop a safety management
system that includes

® Health and safety planning and
objective setting

® Carrying out nsk assessments, both
general and hazard specific

® Producing and 1ssuing safe systems
of work

® Inductian training both job and hazard
specific and refresher training

& Maintenance, inspection and statutory
mspection of work equipment

@& Prowding appropriate personal
protective equipment and rules for
Its use

® Occupational health including health
survelllance and exposure monitonng
as required

® The control of visitors and contractors

® Incident reporting, recording and
investigation

® FRoutine workplace Inspections

® Performance monitonng and evaluation

Annual
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Corporate Governance

General

Castings PL C recognises the importance
of high standards of Corporate
Governance The board has considered
the pnnciples and provisions of the 2010
UK Corporate Governance Code and
will continue to adhere to them where it
1s 1n the interests of the business, and of
shareholders, to do so

The manner in which the board provides
leadership of the company within a
framework of prudent and effective
controls 1s set out in this section and also
within the Remuneration report

Internal control

The board 1s ultimately responsible for
the group’s system of internal controls,
including internal financial control, and
for monitoring its effectiveness There
15 a continuous process for dentifying,
evaluating and managing the significant
nsks faced by the group which s
regularly reviewed and has been 1n place
throughout the year under review and
up to the date of approval of the annual
report and accounts However, such a
system 1s designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance
against matenal misstatement or loss
The review covers all controls including
firancial, operational, comphance and nsk
management

The directors confirm that they have
established procedures necessary to
mplement the guidance for directors
such that they fully comply with the 2010
UK Corporate Governance Code for the
accounting penod ended on 31st March
2012
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Internal financial control

The directors are responsible for
maintaining  the group’s  systems of
internal financial controt These controls
are designed to both saleguard the
group's assets and ensure the reliability
of financial information used within the
business and for publicaticn As with any
such systems, controls can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance
against materal misstatement or loss

Internal financial control 1s operated within
a clearly defined organisational structure
with clear control responsibilities and
authorittes, and a practice throughout
the group of regular management and
board meetings to review all aspects of
the group's businesses including those
aspects where there 1s a potential nsk to
the group

For each business there are regular
weekly and monthly reports, reviewed by
boards and maragement, which contan
both wntten reports and accounts The
accounts include profit and loss accounts
and balance sheets for the pernod under
review, year to date and previous year and
are compared with expected results A
variety of operattional and financial ratios
are also produced

Continual monitoring of the systems of
internal finaneial control 15 conducted by
all management The external auditors,
who are engaged to express an opminien
on the group accounts, also consider the
systems of internal financial control to the
extent necessary to express that opinion
The external auditors report the results
of ther work to management, including
members of the board and the audit
committee

The board does not consider there is a

need for an internal audit function due to
the size and non-complexity of the group

Auditors’ independence

The non-audit work undertaken in the
year by the group auditors, BDO LLP
was restncted to an mvolvement in the
preparation of the tax computations and
related tax advice of the group companies
and a review of the intenm financial
statements

Environment

The board recogrises that our operations
have an effect on the local, regional and
global environment, and as a consequence
of thus, the board 1s commutted to adopting
policies, processes and procedures which
will lead to the continual improvement
In environmental performance and the
prevention of pollution

Directors’ conflicts of
interest

A director has a statutory duty to avod
a situation in which he has, or can have,
an interest that conflicts or possibly may
conflict with the interests of the company
A director will not breach that duty if the
relevant matter has been authonsed in
accordance with the Articles of Association
by the other directors

The board has conducted a review of
actual or possible conflicts of interest in
respect of each director At its meeting on
2nd Octeber 2008, the board considered
the process for rdentfying current
confiicts, authonsed conflicts that have
been identified and stipulated conditions
In accordance with the guiding principles
and agreed a process to identify and
authonse future conficts In practce,
directors are asked to consider and
disclose actual or potential conficts at
the beginning of each meeting and as and
when a matter anses
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Corporate Governance

continued

Attendance at board and board committee meetings dunng the year 1s detalled in the table shown below

Director

B J Cooke

D J Gawthorpe

S J4 Mant

M A Lews

G Cooper

C P King

G B Wainwnght

A J Smith (resigned on 31 March 2012}

Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
Elgible to Elighble to Eligible to

attend Attended attend Attended attend Attended
8 8 - - - -
B 8 - - - -
8 8 — — - —
8 7 - - - -
8 8 - - - -
8 7 2 2 1 1
8 7 2 1 1 1
8 7 2 2 1 1

The chairman communicates frequently with the non-executive and executive directors Directors are also encouraged to discuss any 1ssues
or congerns with the chairman at any time throughout the year The chairman also holds meetings with the non-executive directors without

executives present

The remuneration committee reviews the performance of the directors, including the chairman

The non-executive directors appraise the chaiman’s performance

Board of directors

The board meets regulary to monitor the
current state of business and to determine
its future strategic direction During the
year the board comprnised five executive
drectors and three  non-executive
directors Two of the non-executive
directors are independent of executive
management and none of the non-
executive directors participate In share
opticn or other executive remuneration
schemes nor do they qualify for pension
benefits

On 31 March 2012, A J Smith resigned
as non-executive director with A N
Jones being appointed on 2 Apnl 2012 A
Vicary was also appointed as an executive
director on 2 April 2012

Although two of the non-executive
directors have served for more than ten
years their knowledge, advice and controls
are still invaluable to the group

Directors  receive  regular  updates
appropnate to the business throughout
the year

To assist with the conduct of ther
function, the non-executive directors

are able to obtan professional advice
at the company’s expense 1f required In
connection with their duties In addition,
all directors have access to the services of
the company secretary

Board committees

The principal commitiees established by
the directors are

Audit committee

This committee compnised the three
non-executive directors and s chared
by C P King The finance director and
other executive directors may also
attend meetings as appropriate to the
business in hand but are not members of
the committee

The committee meets at least twice a year
and examines any matters relating to the
financial affars of the group including
the revtew of annual and intenm resuits,
nternal control procedures and accounting
practices The audit committee meets with
the auditors penodically and as necessary
Remuneration committee

As detaled In the remuneration report on
page 15

Nomination commritee

This committee compnsed the three non-
executive directors and 15 chaired by G
B Wainwnght The charman may attend
meetings as appropnate to the business in
hand but s not a member of the committee
The committee met once dunng the year

Relations with
shareholders

The company holds meetings from time
to time with nstitutional shareholders
to discuss the company's strategy and
financial performance The Annual General
Meeting 1s used to communicate with
prnvate and institutional investors

Going Concern

The directors have assessed the future
funding requirements of the group and
the company and compared them to the
tevel of fundmng avalable Details of the
cash position are set out In note 19 to the
accounts The group’s objectives, policies
and processes for managing its capital,
its financial nsk management objectives,
details of its financial nstruments and
hedging activities, and its exposure to
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credit nsk and hquidity risk are also set out
i notes 17 and 19 to the accounts

The directors’ assessment included a
review of the group’s financial forecasts,
and financial instruments for the 15
months from the balance sheet date The
directors considered a range of potential
scenanos within the key markets the group
serves and how these may impact on cash
flow The group and company's business
activities, together with the factors hikely to
affect its future development, performance
and position are set out In the Chaiman's
Staterment on page 3 The directors also
considered what mitigating actons the
group could take to imit any adverse
consequences

After making these enquiries, the directors
have a reasonable expectation that the
company and the group have adequate
resources to continue operations far the
foreseeable future For this reason, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements

Summary

The board takes its responsibilities
senously even though thera are a number
of areas in which 1t does not comply fully
with the 2010 UK Corporate Governance
Code It does not feel that the size or
complexity of the group and the way
which 1t governs would be enhanced
or strengthened by further changing
the already existing high standards of
corporate governance practised

For the year ended 31st March 2012
the company complied with the 2010 UK
Corporate Governance Code other than
the following points

® There were three non-executive
directors dunng the year, cne of whom
did not conform to the defintion of
independent Although these directors
have served for more than ten years the
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board recognises the value they bring
and believes it 1s important too that
shareholders have the reassurance of
non-executives on the board whose
Independence 1s beyond question
Following the resignation of ohe non-
executive director at the year end, a
new Independent non-executive was
appointed on 2 Apnl 2012

® The non-executive directors do not
have specified term contracts

@ The chailrman 1s also regarded as an
executive drector but on reduced
hours However, the chief executive I1s
responsible for the day to day running
of the group with direct responsibility
for the Brownhills site and through
the managing directors of Willam Lee
and CNC Speedwell The charman
concentrates on the effective working
of the board and overall group
strategies and remains a high level
contact with our main customers

® The role of the financial director and
company secretary are fulfiled by the
same person as there 1s no one else
within the group qualfied to do the job
and it would not be a full-trme position
The board monitors the effectiveness
of this arrangement annually

® There 1s no formal arrangement
whereby staff may, in confidence, raise
concerns about possible impropneties
in matters of financial reporting or
other matters The wisibihity of directors
within the business 1s considered
sufficient to enable any such 1ssues to
be raised

These are considered appropnate mn
relation to the size of the company and the
way In which it operates

15
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Remuneration Report

This report has been prepared In
accordance with Schedule 8 to the
Accourting Regulations under the
Comparies Act 2006 and also meets
the relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authorty
The report describes how the board has
applied the pnnciples relating to directors’
remuneraticn As required by the Act,
a resolution will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting to approve the
remuneration report for the financial year
ended 31st March 2012

The Act requires the auditors to repert to
the company’s members on certain parts
of the directors’ remuneration report and to
state whether, in therr opinion, those parts
of the report have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Act Items marked
* have been subject to audit and reported
on In the auditors’ report on page 18 and
all other information 1s unaudited

Directors' Emoluments*

B J Cocke

D J Gawthorpe

S J Mant — Note 2
M A Lews

G Cooper

C P King

G B Wainwnght

A J Smith

Note 1 — Benefits in kind include car or
car benefit, fuel or cash allowance, and
private health care

Note 2 — In the pnor year S J Mant was
paid a salary of £31,000 and bonus of
£23,000 In respect of the period pnor te
joining the Board

Pension arrangements

Executive directors were contnbuting
members of the Castngs PLC Staff
Pension and Life Assurance Scheme, a

Remuneration committee

Thus committee compnsed the three non-
executive directors and 1s charred by G B
Wainwnght The charrman of the group 1s
invited to attend meetings where appropnate
but is not a member of the committee

None of the executive directors were

present at meetings of the committee dunng
consideration of therr cwn remuneration

No adwvice has been provided by external
advisers or consultants

Remuneration policy

The underlying policy In setting the
remuneration of the executive directors
15 that it shall be designed to retain and
motivate the directors and be reasonable
and far in relation to thewr responsibilities

Executive directors’ emoluments compnse
annual salary, an annual bonus, membership
of a company pension scheme and other
benefits The committee ordinanly reviews
directors’ salanes annually, effective from 1st

Apnl, taking mto account market rates and
the performance of the indimdual and of the
company Pay and emplyment condiions
of the group are taken into account In
determiming  directors’ remuneration, with
the committee approving similar rates of
salary increase across the group Policies
for benefits (which include provision of a
car or car benefit, private health care and
Ife assurance) are reviewed regulady and
compansons with other companies are
made Reports and published data are also
taken into consideration in setting salary and
benefit packages

Remuneration in 2012

The indmvidual elements of remuneration of
each director are set out in the table below

Annual bonus

Executive directors participate in a
performance-related annual bonus scheme
Bonuses are payable based on the group
obtaining profits before tax and exceptional
tems above a predetermined threshold

Salary/ Benefits Performance 2012 2011
fees {note 1) related borus Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

84 5 71 160 120
208 11 142 361 280
125 10 142 277 80
152 10 142 304 225
152 10 142 304 226

22 — — 22 20

25 - - 25 20

22 —_ - 22 20
790 46 639 1,475 1,136

defined benefit scheme, up to 5th Apnl
2009 Thewr dependants are ekgible for
dependants’ pensions and the payment of
a lump sum In the event of death in service
The scheme provides for a pension accrued
at 1/60th per year of service to 2005 and
1/80th per year thereafter From 6th Apnl
2009, they became deferred members

Final pensionable remuneration 15 based
on capped basic salanes on retirernent at
normal retirement age

From 6th Apnl 2009, the execulive

directors were able to join the Castings
PLC Money Purchase Pension Scheme,
a defined contnbution pension scheme
Pension contnbutons are not paid on
benefits or bonuses Total contnbutions
of the company total 7% of pensionable
earnings

Four directors are members of the Money
Purchase Pension Scheme
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Directors’ pension entitlements*

Transter

Increase value of Accumutated Accumulated
Directors’ Increase inaccrued increase net totat total Transfer Transter  Difference
contnbutions  in accrued pension  of inflation accrued accrued value of value of  In transfer
n the pension dunng and pensionat pension at accrued accrued values
Age at year during year net directors’ 31/03/2012 31/03/2011 benefits benefits less
Name of diractor year end (note 1) the year of inflaton contnibutions (note 2) (note 2) 31/03/2012 31/03/2011 contnbutions
£ £ £ [N £ £ £ £ £
D } Gawthorpe 50 - 2,305 - - 48,411 46,106 523,828 443,687 80,140
M A Lewis 48 — 1,072 — — 22,507 21,435 232,829 203,140 29,689
G Cooper 58 - 1,299 - - 27,283 25,984 395,783 340,915 54,868

The following directors are members of the Castings PL C Money Purchase Pension and Life Assurance Scheme and the contnbutions paid
by Castings PL.C in respect of those directors over the year 1s set out below

Contnbutions paid to 31/03/2012

D J Gawthorpe 9,211
S J Mant 9,118
M A Lewis 9,202
G Cooper 9,202

Notes to pension benefits:

1 The Castings PL C Staff Pension and Life Assurance Scheme was closed to future accrual of benefits on 5th April 2009 The above
directors (excluding S J Mant) were members of this scheme up until this date

2 The pension entitlement shown 1s that which would be paid annually on retirement based on service to the end of the company
financial year

Performance graph Directors’ contracts

The following graph shows the company’s performance, measured by total shareholder Executive directors have contracts of
return, compared with the performance of the FTSE All Share Index — Engineenng sub-sector, service terminable on one year's notice
also measured by total shareholder return This index has been selected for this companson These contracts are considered appropnate
because this 1s the most relevant index in which the company's shares are quoted in the context of the overall remuneration

policy, as In the opinion of the board it 1s
consistent for directors to take a long-
term rather than a short-term wiew of therr
conduct and planning of the company's
affairs None of the contracts contains any
provision for predetermined compensation
in the event of termination

The date of contracts currently in place for
the executive directors 1s 1st Apnl 2012

The non-executive directors do not
have a contract of service and do not
participate 1n  the company's bonus
schemes and are not eligible to jon a
company pension scheme

On behatt of the board
G B WAINWRIGHT

Charrman of the remuneration commttee

Source Thomson Financtal - Thomson One Banker 20 June 2012
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing
the annual report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations

Company law requires the directors
to prepare financial statements for
each financial year Under that law the
directors are required to prepare the
group financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Umion and have elected to
prepare the company financial statements
In  accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards
and applicable law) Under company
law the directors must not approve the
financial staternents unless they are
sahsfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affars of the group and
company and of the profit or loss for the
group and company for that penod

In prepanng these financial statements, the
directors are required to

® select suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently,

® make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and
prudent,

@ state whether they have been prepared
In accordance with {FRSs as adopted
by the European Union, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financrai statements,

® prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it 1s
inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue In business,

® prepare a drectors’ report and
directors’ remuneration report which
comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records  that
are sufficient to show and exptain the
company’s transacticns and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the group
financial statements, Article 4 of the |AS
Regulation They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company
and hence for taking reasonable steps tfor
the prevention and detection of fraud and
other uregulanties

Website publication

The directors are responsible for
ensunng the annual report and the
financial statements are made availlable
on a website Financial statements are
published on the company's website in
accordance with tegislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements,
which may vary from legtslation in other
junsdictions  The maintenance and
integnty of the company's website 1s
the responsibility of the directors The
directors’ responsibility also extends
to the ongoing integnty of the financial
statements contained theren

Directors’ responsibilities
pursuant to DTR 4

The directors confirm to the best of therr
knowledge

® The group financial statements have
been prepared In accordance with
International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulaton and give a true and farr
view of the assets, labities, financial
positicn and profit and loss of the group

@ The annual report includes a fair review
of the development and performance
of the business and the financial
position of the group and the parent
company, together with a descnption
or the principal nsks and uncertainties
that they face
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Independent Auditors’

To the members of Castings PL C

Report

We have audited the financial statements
of Castings PLC for the year ended
31st March 2012 which compnse the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
Income, consolidated and parent company
balance sheets, consolidated cash flow
statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the related notes
The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in the preparation of the
group financial statements is applicable
law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the
European Union The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in
preparaton of the parent company
financial statements 1s applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report i1s made sclely to the company's
members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparues Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required
to state to themn in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other
than the company and the company's
members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed

Respective
responsibilities of
directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the statement
of directors’ responsibilities, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being
satisfled that they give a true and farr view
Our responsibibty 15 to audit and express
an opmnion on the financial statements
In accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for
Auditors
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Scope of the audit of the
financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of
financial statements Is provided on the
APB's website at http //www frc org uk/
apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion on financial
statements

In our opinion

@ the financial statements give a true
and farr view of the state of the group’s
and the parent company’s affarrs as at
31st March 2012 and of the group's
profit for the year then ended,

@ the group financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union,

® the parent company financial
statements have been properly
prepared In accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

® the financial statements have been
prepared In accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act
2006, and, as regards the group
financial statements, Articles 4 of the
IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters
prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

@ the part of the directors’ remuneratiocn
report ta be audited has been properly
prepared In accordance with the
Compantes Act 2006, and

@ the information given in the directors’
report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared
1s consistent with the financial
statements

Matters on which we
are required to report by
exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters where the Companies
Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in
our opIon

@ adequate accounting records have not
been kept by the parent company, or
returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not
visited by us, or

® the parent company financial
statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be
audited are not tn agreernent with the
accounting records and returns, or

® certan disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made, or

® we have not recewved all the
informaton  and  explanatons we
required for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to

review

® the directors’ statements, set out on
pages 14 and 15 in relation to going
concern, and

® the part of the corporate governance
relating to the company's comphance
with the mne prowisions of the 2010
UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review

® certan elements of the repont
to shareholders by the board on
directors’ remuneration

Stephen Ward {senior statutory audttor)
For and behalf of BDO LLP,
Statutory auditor

Birmingham
United Kingdom

20 June 2012

BDO LLP is a imited habiity partnership
registered in England and Wales (with
registered number OC305127)
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 317st March 2012
2012 2011

Notes £000 £000
Revenue 2 126,271 105,368
Cost of sales {92,658) (77,526)
Gross profit 33,613 27,842
Distribution costs (1,665) {1,909)
Administrative expenses
Excluding exceptional (9,704) {10,942)
Exceptional 4 693 352
Total administrative expenses (9,011) {10,590)
Profit from operations 3 22,937 156,343
Finance income 7 156 158
Profit before mcome tax 23,093 15,501
Income tax expense 8 {5,502) (3,849)
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parent company 17,591 11,652
Other comprehensive income for the year
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 28 -
Net actuarial gainf{loss) and movement in unrecogrised surplus on defined
benefit pension schemes (345) {408)
Tax effect of gains and losses recognised directly in equity [t4] -
Total other comprehensve income for the year {net of tax) (324) (409)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the equny
holders of the parent company 17,267 11,243
Earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the parent
company
Basic and diluted 10 40 32p 26 71p
Notes to the accounts are on pages 24 to 43
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

31st March 2012
2012 2011
Notes £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 62,226 55,889
Financial assets 12 495 467
62,721 56,356
Current assets
Inventores 13 8,310 11,402
Trade and other receivables 14 30,191 30,956
Cash and cash equivalents 17.805 13,707
57,306 56,065
Total assets 120,027 112,421
Liabilities
Current habilties
Trade and other payables 15 18,863 25,113
Current tax hiabilities 2,983 1,546
21,846 26,659
Non-current liabilties
Deferred tax habilities 16 5,577 5,647
Total liabilihes 27,423 32,308
Net assets 92,604 80,115
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company
Share capital 17 4,363 4,363
Share premtum account 874 874
Other reserve 13 13
Retaned earnings 87,354 74,865
Total equity 92,604 80,115

The accounts on pages 20 to 43 were approved and authorised for 1ssue by the board of directors on 20 June 2012, and were signed

on its behalf by

B J Cooke Chairman

S J Mant Finance Director

Notes to the accounts are on pages 24 to 43
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31st March 2012

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before iIncome tax

Adjustments for

Depreciation

Loss/(profit) on disposa! of property, plant and equipment

Interest receved

Excess of employer pension cantributions over income statement charge
Decrease/{Increase) in inventories

Decrease/{Increase) in recevables

(Decrease)/Increase In payables

Cash generated from operating activities
Tax paid
Interest received

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment {net of adjustment - see note 11)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid to sharsholders

Net cash used in financing activiies

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash eguivalents at end of year 19

Cash and cash eguivalents
Short-term deposits
Cash available on demand

Notes to the accounts are on pages 24 to 43

2012

23,093

6,188
66

(137)
(345)
2,092
765
(6,250)
25,472

(4,142)
137

21,467

(12,591)

(12,591)

(4,778)

(4.778)

4,098
13,707

17,805

17,189
616

.

17,805
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£000

15,501

5,606
(26)

(120)

(409)
(3,584)
{12,219)
10,442

15,191

(2,009)
120

13,212

(9,907)
15
32

{9,860)

(4,363)

(4,363)

(1,011)
14,718

13,707

13,280
427

13,707
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Consolidated Statement of Changes

in Equity

for the year ended 31st March 2012

At 1st Apnl 2011

Total comprehensive income for the period ended
31ist March 2012

Dmidends

At 31st March 2012

At 1st April 2010

Total comprehensive income for the penod ended
31st March 2011

Dwvidends

At 31st March 2011

Equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent

Share Share Other Retained Total
capitai premium® reservet earnings? equity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
4,363 874 13 74,865 80,115
- — - 17,267 17,267

— - - 4,778 {4,778}
4,363 874 13 87,354 92,604

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share Share Other Retained Total
capital® premium® reserve® earnings? aquity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
4,363 874 13 67.985 73,235
- - - 11,243 11,243

- - - (4,363) (4,363)
4,363 874 13 74,865 80,115

a) Share capital — The nominal value of allotted and fully paid up ordinary share capital in 1ssue

b} Share premium — Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value

¢) Other reserve — Amounts transferred from share capital on redemption of issued shares

d) Retained earnings — Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting policies

New standards effective in
2012 adopted by the group

The following new accounting standards

have been adopted by the group in these

financial statements

® [AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures
(Rewised)” (effective date 1 January
2011), and

@ Improvements to IFRS (1 January 2011)

There has been no significant impact in
respect of adopting these new standards

Basis of accounting

The group financial statements have
been prepared In accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards {'IAS")
and Interpretations (collectively ‘IFRS’), as
endorsed for use in the EU

The IFRASs apphed in the group financial
statements are subject te ongoing
amendment by the IASBE and subsequent
endorsement by the European Commission
and therefore subject to possible change
in the future Further standards and
Interpretations may be 1ssued that will be
applicable for financial years beginning on
or after 1st Apnl 2012 or later accounting
penods but may be adopted early

The preparation of financial statements
In accordance wath IFRS requires the
use of certan accounting estimates It
alse requires management to exercise its
judgernent in the process of appiying the
group's accounting policies

The pnmary statements within the financial
information corntained in this document
have been presented In accordance
with 1AS 1
Statements
The accounts are prepared under the
historical cost convention, except where
adjusted for revaluations of certain

Presentation of Financial

assets, and in accordance with applicable

Accounting Standards and those parts
of the Companies Act 2006 applicable
to companies reporting under IFRS A
summary of the pnncipal group IFRS
accounting policies 1s set out below

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated statement of
comprehensive Income and balance
sheet include the accounts of the parent
company and its subsidianes made up
to the end of the financial year These
subsidianes include Willam Lee Limited
and CNC Speedwell Limited, both of which
are 100% owned and are based in the UK
Intercompany transactions and balances
between group companies are eliminated
n full

Business combinations
and goodwill

Shares issued as consideration for the
acquistion of comparnes have a farr value
attnbuted to them, which 1s normally ther
market value at the date of acquisition Net
tangible assets acquired are consolidated
at a farr value to the group at the date of
acquisition All changes to these assets and
labitities, and the resulting gains and losses
that anse after the group has gained control
of the subsidiary, are credited and charged
to the post-acquisition income statement
Under UK GAAF, goodwill ansing on
acquisihions prior to 1998 was written off to
reserves There have been no acquisitions
since 1998 Following the exemption In
IFRS 1 this treatment has continued to be
followed

Revenue recognition

Revenue, which excludes value added
tax and intra-group sales, represents the
invoiced value of goods and services sold
to customers Appropriate provisions for
returns and other allowances are deducted
from revenue as appropriate The group
has no barter transactions

The group's revenue has been recognised
when goods have been dispatched

Post-retirement benefits

Two of the group's pension plans are
of a defined benefit type Under IAS 18
Employee Benefits the employer’s portion
of the current service costs and curtallment
gains are charged to operating profit for
these plans, with the Interest cost net of
the expected return on assets 1n the plans
also bewmng credited to operating profit
Actuanal gains and losses are recognised
directly In equity, in the statement of
comprehensive mcome, and the balance
sheet reflects the schemes' surplus or
deficit at the balance sheet date A full
valuation 1s carned out tn-annually using
the projected unit credit method

If the group cannot benefit from a scheme
surplus in the form of refunds from the
plans or reductions in future contnbutions,
any asset resulting from the above policy
1s restnicted accordingly

Payments to the defined contrbution
scheme are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive iIncome as
they become payable

Property, plant and

equipment

Property, plant and equipment assets

are held at cost less accumulated

depreciaticn Depreciation 1s provided on

property, plant and equipment, other than

freehold land and assets n the course of

construction, on a straight-line basis The

periods of wnte-off used are as follows

1 Freehold buildings over 50 years

I Leasehcid land and buldings over
50 years or the penod of the lease,
whichever s less

m Plant and equipment over a penod
of 3 to 15 years, straight line or
unit of production method If more
appropnate

The group reviews the
assessment of residual values and useful

lives In accordance with IAS 16

annually
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Inventories

The group's iInventories are valued at the
lower of cost on a first in, first out basis
and net realisable value Cost includes a
proportion of production overheads based
on normal levels of actvity Provision 1s
made for obsolete and slow-mowving items

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash
in hand, deposits at call with banks and
other short-term highly hquid investments
with ongmal matunties of three months or
less

Foreign currencies

Assets and habilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the spot rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date Exchange
differences are dealt with through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income

Financial Instruments

a) Financial assets

The group’s financial assets relate to loans
and recewvables and avalable-for-sale
assets Although the group occasionally
uses denvative financial instruments in
economic hedges of currency rate nsk,
It does not hedge account for these
transactions and the amounts are not
matenal The group has not classified any
of its financial assets as held to matunty

Available-for-sale assets

Available-for-sale financial assets
comprise the group’s strategic investments
in entties not qualfying as subsidianes
They are camed at farr value with changes
in farr value recogrised directly in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income Fair value 15 determined with
reference to published guoted pnces in an
active market
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Loans and receivables
These assets are non-denvative financial
assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market They arise pnncipally through
the provision of goods and services to
customers (e g trade recewvables} and
deposits held at banks and building
societies, but may also incorporate other
types of contractual monetary asset
They are initially recognised at fair value
pius transaction costs that are directly
attnbutable to the acquisition or issue and
subsequently carmed at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method,
less provisicn for impairment

The effect of discounting on these
financial instruments 15 not considered to
be matenal

Imparmment  provisions are recogrised
when there 15 objectve ewvidence {such as
sigrificant financial difficulties on the part
of the counterparty or default or significant
delay in payment} that the group will be
unable to collect all of the amounts due
under the terms of the deposit or recevable
The amount of such a provision Is the
difference between the net carmying amount
and the present value of the future expected
cash flows associated with the impared
asset Such provisions are recorded n a
separate allowance account with the loss
being recognised within  administrative
expenses In the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income On confimation
that the deposit or recevable will not be
collectable, the gross carrying value of the
asset 15 wntten off against the associated
provision

b) Financial liabilities

The group classifies its financial iabilities
into habilities measured at amortised
cost Although the group uses derivative
financial instruments 1in economic hedges
of currency nsk, it does not hedge account
for these transactions, and the amounts
are not material

Unless otherwise indicated, the carrying
armounts of the group’s financial iabilities
are a reasonable approximation of their
fair vatues

Financial liabilities
measured at amortised
cost

Financial habiliies include trade payables
and other short-term monetary labilities,
which are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently carned at amortised
cost using the effective interest method
Fatr value 1s calculated by discounting
estimated future cash flows using a market
rate of interest

c) Share capital

The group’s ordinary shares are classified
as equity instruments The group IS not
subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements Share capital includes the
nominal value of the shares and any share
premium attaching to the shares

Current and deferred tax
Deferred tax 1s provided using the tiability
method Deferred income tax assets are
recogmised to the extent that it 1s probable
that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences
can be utihised

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average
tax rates that are expected to apply in the
perteds in which the temporary differences
are expected to reverse, based on tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date
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Notes to the Accounts

continued

Current tax is prowided for on the
taxable profits of each company in
the group, using current tax rates and
legislation that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date

Dividends

The final dvidend 1s only recognised at
the point it I1s declared and approved by
the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting Intenm dwvidends are recognised
on payment

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are those significant
items which are separately disclosed by
virtue of the size or Incidence to enable a
full understanding of the group's financial
performance

Standards, interpretations
and amendments to
published standards that
are not yet effective

The following new standards, amendments
and interpretations have been issued
but are mot yet effective and therefore
have not been adopted in these
financial statements Management are
considenng the mpact of the changes
on future reporting
® Presentatton of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Incorne (Amendments
10 1AS 1) (1 July 2012),

® IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(1 January 2015),
® IFRS 10 “Consoiidated Financial

Statements” {1 January 2013),

® IFRS 13 “Far Value Measurement”
(1 January 2013),

® Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” (1 January 2013), and

® Amendments to IAS 27 “Separate
Financial Statements” (1 January
2013),

There are a number of further standards,
interpretations  and amendments  to
published standards not set out above
which the drectors consider not to be
relevant to the group

Critical accounting
estimates and
judgements

The group makes certain estimates and
judgements regarding the future Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated
based on histoncal expenence and other
factors, including expectation of future
events that are beleved to be reasonable
under the circumstances In the future,
actual experience may differ from these
estimates and judgements The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant
nsk of causing a matenal adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and
labdities within the next financial year are
discussed below

Short-term deposits

See note 19 for further detalls

Useful lives of property,
plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are
deprectated over therr useful lives based
on management’s estimates of the period
that the assets will generaterevenue, which
are penicdically reviewed for continued
appropnateness Changes to estimates

can result in signficant vanations in the
carrying value and amounts charged to
the consolidated income statement n
specific penods More details including
carrying values are included in note 11

Inventory

The company reviews the net realisable
value of, and demand for, its iInventory ona
regular basis to provide assurance that the
recorded inventory i1s stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value Factors
that could impact estimated demand
and selbng pnces include customer order
scheduling, competitor actions, suppher
prices and economic trends See note 13
for further details

Pension assumptions

The costs, assets and liabilites of
the defined benefit pension schemes
operated by the group are determined
using methods relying on  actuanal
estimates and assumptions Details of the
key assumptions are set out in note 6
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2 Operating segments

For internal decision making purposes, the group Is organised Into three operating comparies which are considered to be the operating
segments of the group Castings pic and William Lee are aggregated into Foundry Operations and CNGC Spsedwell 1s the Machining Cperation
The following shows the revenues, results and total assets by reportable segment in the year to 31st March 2012

Foundry
operations Machining Ehmination Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue from external customers 117,036 9,235 - 126,271
Inter-segmental revenue 18,888 11,283 - 30,171
Segmental result 17,761 4,017 121 21,899
Unazllocated costs
Exceptiona! credit for recovery of lcelandic Bank deposits
previcusly written off 693
Excess of employer pension contnbutions over statement of
comprehensive iIncome charge 345
Finance income 156
Profit before income tax 23,093
Total assets 110,377 22,755 (13,105) 120,027
Non-current asset additions 7,508 5,356 - 12,864
Depreciation 3,046 3,142 - 6,188

All non-current assets are based n the United Kingdom
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Notes to the Accounts

continued

2 Operating segments continued
The following shows the revenues, results and total assets by reportable segment in the year to 31st March 2011

Foundry
operations Machining Elimination Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue from external customers 97,163 8,205 - 105,368
Inter-segmental revenue 14,429 11,701 - 26,130
Segmental result 11,593 3,410 (421) 14,582
Unallocated costs
Exceptional credit for recovery of Icelandic Bank deposits
previously written off 196
Release of provision for industnal Tnbunal costs 156
Excess of employer pension contnbutions over statement of
comprehensive income charge 409
Finance income 158
Profit before Income tax 15,501
Total assets 104,311 20,781 (12,671) 112,421
Non-current asset additions 3,419 6,488 - 9,907
Depreciation 2,882 2,724 - 5,606
All non-current assets are based in the United Kingdom
2012 2011
2000 £000
The geographical analysis of revenues by destination for the year 1s as follows
United Kingdom 42 531 42,617
Sweden 31,588 21,189
Rest of Europe 45,950 38,147
North and South America 4,877 2,436
Other 1,325 979
126,271 105,368

All revenue anses in the United Kingdom from the group’s continuing activities Inter-company sales are priced on an arm’s length basis

Information about major customers

Included in revenues ansing from Foundry operations are revenues of approximately £28,168,000 and £18,452,000 from two customers

(2011 - £23,893,000 and £11,754,000)
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3 Profit from operations

This has been armved at after charging/(crediting)

Staff costs (note 5)

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Fees payable to the company's auditors for the audit of the company's annual accounts
Fees payable to the company’s auditors for other services

— The audit of the company’s subsidianes

— Tax services

Loss/{profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

4 Exceptional items

Recovery of past provision for losses on deposits with lcelandic banks (see (a) below)
Provision for Industnal Tnbunal costs (see (b) below)

2012
£000

34,021
55,097
6,188
25

26
10

66

2012
£000

(693)

(693)

2011
£000

30,793
55,553
5,606
25

26
10

&

———

2011
£000

(196)
(156)

(352)

a) The company reported In the year end 31st March 2009 that £1 86 millon was included in ather recevables as recoverable from various
Icelandic banks So far £2,749,000 has been receved with the excess being shown as an exceptional credit

b) The exceptional credit of £156,000 in 2011 relates to a provision for Industnal Tnbunal costs made as at 31st March 2010 that was

released due to the costs incurred being lower than the estimate made of £200,000

5 Employee mformation

Average number of employees dunng the year was
Production
Management and admunistration
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Notes to the Accounts

continued

5 Employee information continued

2mz2 2011
£000 £000
Staff costs (including directors) compnse
Wages and salanes 30,430 27,754
Defined contnbution pension costs 679 658
Defined benefit pension cost (note &) (345) (409)
Employer’s national insurance contributions and similar taxes 3,257 2,790
34,021 30,793

In addition to the wages and salanes disclosed above, the group incurred costs of £816,000 (2011 — £1,429,000) in respect of agency
workers

The directors represent the key management personnel

Details of therr compensation are given in the Remuneration Report on page 16

6 Pensions

The group operates two pension schemes providing benefits based on final pensionable pay, which are closed to new entrants and were
closed te future accruals on 6th April 2009 The assets are independent of the finances of the group and are administered by Trustees

In July 2010 the UK Government announced that the statutory mimmum level of revaluation would in the future be calculated using the
Consumer Pnce Index (“CPI") rather than the Retail Price Index (“RPI"} Following an independent review dunng the year, it was agreed
that pension increases will be in ine with the new statutory requirements This change has been accounted for as an actuanal gain in these
financral statements

The latest actuarial valuation was performed with an effective date of 6th April 2011 using the attained unit method It assumed that the rate
of return on Investments was 5 B% per annum for pre-retirement and 4 9% for post-retirement and price inflation was 3 5% under RPI and
3 1% under CPI The demographic assumptions are based on S1NA tables with an age rating of -1 year being applied to the birth tables for
the Staff Scheme The Staff Scheme has assumed long cohort projected iImprovemnents of 1% per annum on future life expectancy, with the
Shopfloor Scheme being based on CMI projections with a 1 5% per annum long-term rate of improvement

The next actuanal valuation will be performed with an effective date of 6th Apnl 2014

In addition, the group operates a money purchase pension scheme whereby contributions are invested through individual accounts under an
insurance policy administered by Trustees

Composition of the schemes

The group operates defined benefit schernes (iIn addition to a defined contribution scheme) 1n the UK Full actuana!l valuations of the
defined benefit schemes were camed out at 6th Apni 2011 and updated te 31st March 2012 using the projected unit method by a qualified
independent actuary The service cost has been calculated using the projected unit method The major assumptions used by the actuary
were (in nominal terms)

2012 2011
Rate of iIncrease of pensions In payment 25% 34%
Discount rate 4 9% 55%
Inflation assumphon (RPH) 32% 34%
Inflabon assumption (CPI) 25% n/a
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6 Pension disclosures under IAS 19 continued

Change in benefit obhgation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Plan participants’ contributions
Actuanal loss/{gain)

Benefits paid

Benefit obhgation at end of year

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Expected return on plan assets

Actuanal (loss)/gain

Employer contnbution

Member contnbutions

Benefits paid

Farr value of plan assets at end of year

Funded status
Unrecognised pension surplus

Net amount recogrised in the balance sheet

Components of pension cost
Current service cost
Recognition of past service cost
Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Total pension cost recognised within administrative expenses (note 5)
Unrecognised pension surplus at beginning of year
Unrecognised pension surplus at end of year

Actuanal (loss)/gain for the year

Pension cost shown in Other Comprehensive Income

Cumutative amount of actuanal gains and losses immediately recogrised

Annual Report 2012

2012

41,486
165
2,237

a5
(1,628)

42,295

48,169
2,747
(225)

(1,628)
49,063

6,768
(6.768)

Year to
31st March
2012

£000

165

2,237
2,747
(345)

6,683
(6.768)
(260)

345

11,972

2011

41,369

2,271

{520)
(1,634)

41,486

46,250
2,680
872

(1,634)
48,169

6,683
{6,683)

Year to
31st March
2011

£000

2,271
(2.680)

(409)
4,881

(6,683)
1,393

402

11,712
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Notes to the Accounts

continued

6 Pension disclosures under IAS 19 continued
Plan assets
The weighted average assets allocations at the year end were as follows

Plan Plan
assets at assets at
31st March 31st March
2012 2011

Assets category
Equities 66% 69%
Bonds % 28%
Real estate 3% 3%
100% 100%

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the company considered the current level of expected returns on
nsk-free iInvestments (pnmanly government bonds), the histoncat level of nsk premium associated with the other asset classes in which the
portfolio 1s Invested and the expectations for future returns of each asset class The expected return for each asset class was then weighted
based on the target asset allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption for the portfolio This resulted in
the selection of the 5 8% (2011 — 5 9%) assumpticn

The projected pension cost for the year ending 31st March 2013 1s a credit of £150,000

2012 2011
£000 £000
Actuanal return on plan assets 2,522 3,553
Woeighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obhgations
Discount rate 49% 55%
Weighted average assumptions used to determine net pension cost
Discount rate 55% 56%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 58% 59%
Rate of compensation increase n/a n/a
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6 Pension disclosures under IAS 19 continued

Weighted average lIfe expectancy for mortality tables” used to determine benefit obligations at

Scheme member age 65
{current Iife expectancy)
Scheme member age 45
{Iife expectancy at age 65)

was Included as at 31st March 2012 for the Staff Scheme and 1 596 for the Shopflcor Scheme

History of experience gains and losses
Financial year ended in

Present value of defined obligation
Farr value of plan assets

Surplus

Difference between expected and actual
return on scheme assets

amount (£000)

percentage of scheme assets

Experience gains and (losses) on
scheme lhabilities

amount (£000)

percentage of scheme labilihes

Total gains and (losses)
amount (£000)
percentage of scheme assets

7 Finance mcome

Interest on short-term deposits
Income from listed investments
Other

Annuai Report 2012

Mate
Staff/
Shopfloor

2357227

25624 7

2012

Fernale
Staff/

Shopfloor

264/256

284/275
* Mortality tables are STNA (YOB) -1 for the Staff Scheme and S1NA (YOB) for the Shopfloor Scheme A 1% p a floor in future iImprovermnents

Male
Staff/
Shopfloor

2187201

236/219

2011

Female
Stafl/
Shopfloor

250/232

269/251

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
42,295 41,486 41,369 33,251 39,043
49,063 48,169 45,250 34,258 41,829

6,768 6,683 4,881 1,007 2,786

(225) 873 10,187 {11,054) (4.781)
0% 2 0% 220% (32 0%) {11 0%)

1,954 - - 86 (2,033)

5 0% 0% 0% 0% 50%

(260) 1,393 {592) (2,955) (2,748)

(1 0%) 3 0% (10%) (10 0%) (7 0%)
2012 2011
£000 £000
137 120
19 18
- 20
156 158




Notes to the Accounts

continued

8 Income tax

2012
£000
Corporaton tax based on a rate of 26% (2011 - 28%)
UK Corpaoration tax
Current tax on profits for the year 5,725
Adjustments to tax charge In respect of prior penods (146)
5,579
Deferred tax
Current year ongination and reversal of temporary differences 326
Pnor year deferred tax movement 37
Change in rate of corporation tax (440)
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 5,502
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 23,093
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at the standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 26% (2011 — 28%) 6,004
Effect of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 137
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of prior penods (146)
Adjustment to deferred tax charge in respect of prior periods 37
Change in rate of future tax (440)
Pension adjustments 90
Total tax charge for penod 5,502
Effective rate of tax (%) 238
9 Dwidends 201
2012
£000
Final paid of 8 04p per share for the year ended 31st March 2011 (2011 - 7 29p) 3,508
Intenim paid of 2 81p per share (2011 -2 71p) 1,270
4,778

201

3,924
(435)

3,489

412
384
(436)

3,849

15,501

4,340

110

(435)
384
(4386)
(114)

3,849

248

2011

3,181
1,182

4,363

The directors are proposing a final dividend of 8 84 pence (2011 - B 04 pence) per share totaling £3,858,820 (2011 - £3,508,000)

This dividend has not been accrued at the balance sheet date

10 Earnings per share

Earmings per share 1s calculated on the profit on ordinary activities after taxation of £17,591,000 (2011 — £11,652,000) and on the weighted
average number of shares in issue at the end of the year of 43,632,068 (2011 — 43,632,068) There are no share options, hence the diluted

earnings per share Is the same as above
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11 Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 1st Aprl 2011

Additions dunng year
Disposals

Adjustment to opening posihion

At 31st March 2012

Depreciation and amounts wntten off
At 1st Apnit 201

Charge for year

Disposals

At 31st March 2012

Net book values

At 31st March 2012
At 31st March 2011

Cost

At 1st Apnl 2010
Additions duning year
Disposals

At 31st March 2011

Depreciation and amounts written off
At 1st Apnt 2010

Charge for year

Disposals

Reclassification

At 31st March 2011

Net book values
At 31st March 2011

At 31st March 2010

Land and
buildings
£000

23,336
6,001

29,337

3,325
663

3,988

20,349

20,011

22,320
1,016

23,336

2,822
481

22

3,325

20,011

19,498

Plant and other
equipment
£000

92,195
6,863
(1,303)
(273}

97,482

56,317
6,525
(1,237)

60,605

38,877

35,878

84,385
8,891
{1,081)
92,195
52,287
5,125
(1,073)
(22)

56,317

35,878

32,098

Total
£000

115,531

12,864
(1,303)
(273)

126,819

59,642
6,188
(1,237)

64,593

62,226

56,889

106,705
9,907
(1,081)

115,531

55,108
5,606
(1.073)

59,642

55,889

51,596

The adjustment to the plant and other equipment opening position of £273,000 relates to an amendment to the cost of an asset acquired
in a previous period The figure for purchases of property plant and equipment in the cash flow statement of £12,591,000 s shown net of

this adjustment

The net book value of group land and buildings includes £2,527,000 (2011 - £2,527,000) for land which 1s not depreciated The cost of fand
and buildings includes £359,000 for property held on long leases (2011 - £359,000)
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Notes to the Accounts

continued

12 Financial assets

2012 2011
£000 £000
Availlable-for-sale assets 495 467
2012 2011
£000 £000
At 1st Apnl 2011 467 480
Disposals — (13)
Net gains/{losses) transferred to statement of comprehensive income 28 -

At 31st March 2012 495 467

Available-for-sale financial assets are UK quoted equity securibes and are denominated in stering The farr value of the securities 1s based
on published market prices

-

13 Inventories

2012 2011
£000 £000
Raw matenals 3,107 3,169
Work n progress 2,424 2,946
Fimshed goods 3,779 5,287
9,310 11,402
Inventories are net of impairment provisions of £742,000 (2011 — £272,000)
14 Trade and other receivables
2012 2011
£000 £000
Due within one year
Trade receivables 23,297 23,537
Other receivables 1,225 3,310
Prepayments 5,669 4,109
30,191 30,956
15 Trade and other payables
2012 2011
£000 £000
Current trade and other payables
Trade payables 11,900 15,893
Social secunty 1,939 2,118
Other payables 255 422
Accruals 4,769 6,680

18,863 25,113
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16 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using the large company tax rate applicable in 2013 of 24%
{2011- 26%) The movement on the deferred tax account 1S shown below

Deferred tax — net

2012 2011
£000 £000
At 1st Apnf 2011 5,647 5,287
Taken to equity 7 —
(Credit)/charge to iIncome statement 77 360
At 31st March 2012 5,577 5,647
The movement in deferred tax assets and habiities dunng the year is shown below
Deferred tax liabilites
Accelerated Pension
tax depreciation Adjustment OCther Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 1st Apnl 2011 6,054 (168) (239) 5,647
Charged to profit (323) 168 78 77
Charged to other
comprehensive income — - 7 7
At 31st March 2012 5,731 — (154) 5,577
The movement in the deferred tax assets and labilities during the pnor year 1s shown below
Accelerated Pension
tax depreciation Adjustment Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 1st Apni 2010 6,156 (525) (344) 5,287
Charged to profit (102) 357 105 360
At 31st March 2011 6,054 (168) {239) 5,647
The deferred tax charged to equity dunng the year I1s as follows
2012 2011
£000 £000
Tax on pension adjustments - -
Tax on change in farr value of avallable-for-sale financial assets 7 -
Tax on items taken directly to reserves 7 -

The total tax on items taken directly to reserves is £7,000 (2011 — €nil) which includes £nil (2011 — £nil) of current tax on pension adjustments
taken directly to reserves
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Notes to the Accounts

continued

17 Share capital

2012 2011
2000 £000
Authonsed 50,000,000 10p ordinary shares 5,000 5,000
Allotted and fully paid 43,632,068 10p ordinary shares 4,363 4,363

The group considers its capital to compnse its ordinary share caprtal, share premium and accurnulated retained earnings In managing its
capital, the group’s pnmary objective 1s to ensure its continued ability to provide a consistent return for its equity shareholders through a
combination of capital growth and distnbutions Each share entitles the holder to receive the amount of dividends per share declared by the
company and a vote at any meetings of the company

In order to achieve this objective, the group monitors Its gearing to balance nsks and returns at an acceptable level and also to maintain
a sufficient funding base to enable the group to meet its working capital and strategic investment needs In making decisions to adjust its
capital structure to achieve these aims, either through altenng its dividend policy, new share Issues, or the reduction of debt, the group
considers not only its short-term position but alse its long-term operational and strategic objectives

18 Commmtments

2012 2011
£000 £000
Capital commitments contracted for by the group but not provided for in the accounts 348 1,609
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19 Financial imstrument rnisk exposure and management

In common with all other businesses, the group Is exposed to nisks that anse from its use of financial instruments This note describes the
group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing those nsks and the methods used to measure them Further quantitative information
in respect of these nsks 1s presented throughout these financial statements

There have been no substantive changes in the group’s exposure to financial instrument nsks, its objectives, policies and processes for
managing those nsks or the methods used to measure them from previous penods unless otherwise stated in thus note

The added credit nsks associated with bank deposits have led the group to only use major UK banks and to hold amounts on deposit for
shorter penods

Pnincipal financial instruments

The principal financial instruments used by the group, from which financial instrument risk anses, are as follows
@ trade receivables

® other receivables

@& cash at bank
L ]

trade and other payables

General objectives, pol and pro

The board has overall responsibility for the determination of the group’s nsk management cobjectives and policies and, whilst retaining
ultimate responsibility for them, 1t has delegated the authonty for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation
of the gbjectives and policies to the group’s finance functton The board receives reports through which it reviews the effectiveness of the
processes put in place and the appropriateness of the objectives and policies it sets

The overall objective of the board 15 to set policies that seek to reduce nsk as far as possible without unduly affecting the group’s
competitiveness and flexibility Further details regarding these policies are set out below

Categones of financial assets and financial habihties
Loans and recevables

2012 2011
£000 £000
Current financial assets
Trade receivables 23,297 23,537
Other receivables 1,225 3,310
Cash and cash equivalents 17,805 13,707
Total current financial assets 42,327 40,554

The maximum exposure to credit nsks 1s detalled in the above table
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Notes to the Accounts

continued

19 Fmnancial mstrument nsk exposure and management continued
Financial iabilities measured

at amortised cost

2012 2011
£000 £000

Current financiat liabilities
Trade payables 11900 15,893
Other payables 255 422
Accruals 4,769 6,680
Total current financial habilites 16,924 22,995

Credit risk

Credit nsk anses pnncipally from the group’s trade receivables It 1s the nsk that the counterparty fails to discharge its cbhigation i respect
of the instrument

As at 31st March 2012, trade receivables of £23,240,000 {2011 - £23,216,000) were not past due Against these balances no impairment
provisions were made

Trade receivables

Credit nsk 1s managed locally by the management of each subsidiary Prior to accepting new customers, credit checks are obtained from a
reputabte external source (for example Creditsafe and trade references)

Based on thts information, credit imits and payment terms are established, although for some large customers and contracts, credit nsk is
not considered to be high nsk, and credit imits can sometimes be exceeded These exceeded accounts are closely monitored and if there
Is a concern over recoverability accounts are put on stop and no further goods will be sold before receiving payment Pro forma invoicing

1s sometimes used for new customers, or customers with a poor payment history until creditworthiness can be proven or re-established

Management teams at each subsidiary receive regular ageing reports, and these are used to chase relevant customers for outstanding
balances

Impairment provisions are made against trade recewvables when considered appropnate based upon objective evidence
No major renegotiation of terms has taken place dunng the year

The carrying value of the group's trade receivables 1s denominated in the following currencies

2012 2011
£000 £000
Sterhng 17,765 17,822
Euro 5,426 5,634
uss$ 106 81

23,297 23,537

Annual Report 2p12




19 Financial instrument nsk exposure and management continued
At 31st March 2012 trade receivables of £57,000 (2011 - £321,000) were past due but notimpaired They relate to custemers with no default
tmstory The ageing of these receivables is as follows

2012 2011

£000 £000

30-60 days - 233
60-80 days 8 40
90+ days 49 48
57 321

At 31st March 2012 trade receivables of £25,000 (2011 — £209,000) were past due and imparred The amount of the provision at 31st March
2012 was £385,000 (2011 - £359,000) The ageing of these receivables 1s as follows

2012 2011

£000 £000

30-60 days 5 22
60-90 days 3 80
90+ days 17 127
25 209

The group records impairment losses on its trade recevables separately from gross recevables The movements on this allowance account
dunng the year are summansed below

2012 2011

£000 £000
Opening balance 359 517
increase/(decrease) in provisions 26 (155)
Whritten off against provisions 2 -
Recovered amounts reversed 2 3)
Clesing balance 385 359

Impairment losses on trade receivables of £26,000 (2011 ~ ¢credit of £158,000) were recognised in administrative expenses

Liquidrty rnisk

Lrquidity nsk anses from the group’s management of working capital It 1s the nsk that the group will encounter difficulty In meeting its
financial obligations as they fall due The group's policy I1s to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its labilities
when they become due

To achieve this aim, it seeks to maintain cash balances to meet expected requirements for a penod of at least 90 days The cash position Is
continuously monitared to ensure that there 1s sufficient cash and that the optimum interest rate 1s obtained

Based on projected cash flows, the group expected to have sufficient hquid resources to meet its obligations under all reasonably
expected circumstances

Market nsk

Market sk anses from the group’s use of interest bearnng and foreign currency financial instruments It 1s the nsk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial nstrument will fluctuate because of changes in Interest rates {nterest rate nsk), foreign exchange rates (currency
nsk) or other market factors (other price nsk)
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Notes to the Accounts

continued

19 Financial instrument nsk exposure and management continued
The group balance sheet I1s exposed to market nsk in two main ways Firstly, the group holds some strategic equity mnvestments in other
companies where these complement the group's operations (see note 12)

Furthermore, where the group has generated a significant amount of surplus cash it will invest in high guality instruments if iquidity nsk
15 not unduly compromised Although the directors on investing in such nstruments never intend to dispose of investments before matunty,
they cannot guarantee this will never happen and therefore do not classify these instruments as ‘held to matunty’ in the consolidated
balance sheet

The directors believe that the exposure to market price nsk from these activities 1s acceptable in the group's circumstances

Interest rate and currency nsk
The group does not have any financial labilities subject to interest rate nsk at the balance sheet date (2011 — Enil)

Foreign exchange nsk anses when individual group operations enter into transactions denorminated in a currency other than therr functional
currency It s the group’s policy to convert all non-functional currency to sterling at the first opportunity after allowing for similar functiona!
currency outlays It does not consider the use of hedging facilities would significantly minimise this nsk At the balance sheet date the group
had forward contracts in place to sell £2,700,000 (2011 — £nil) The farr value adjustment associated with these contracts is not considered
matenal and has therefore not been recogmsed In these financial statements At the balance sheet date foreign exchange facilities of £1 7
milion {2011 — £1 7 mifion) were unused and available to the group to enable them to enter Into forward exchange contracts

The currency and interest profile of the group’s financial assets (less other receivables) and habilittes are as follows

Floating rate Fixed rate Interest-free

assets assets assets
2012 2012 2012 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Sterling 13 15,835 17,766 33,614
uss 145 - 106 251
Euro 464 1,348 5,426 7.238
622 17,183 23,298 41,103

Floating rate Fixed rate Interest-free

assets assets assets
2011 2011 2011 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Sterling 17 12,313 17,822 30,152
uss 122 - 81 203
Euro 286 969 5,634 6,889
425 13,282 23,537 37,244
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19 Financial instrument nsk exposure and management continued

Interest- Interest-

free free

trabilities liabilities

2012 2011

£000 £000

Sterling 10,857 14,903
uss% —- —
Euro 1,043 980
11,800 15,893

Fixed rate assets attracted interest rates between 0 75% to 1 65% (2011 — 0 75% to 1 30%,) on sterling deposits
Floating rate assets consisted of overmight cash at bank at nominal interest rates

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents generally comprnise short-term deposits that have fixed interest rates and matunty penods within three months
The effect of a +50/(50) increase/(decrease) in basis points with all other vanables held constant would have the effect of increasing/
{decreasing) profit before tax by £97,000/(£80,000} (2011 - £60,000/(£70,000))

The group belleves that movements on exchange rates of +/-5% could be possible, the effect of which 1s that profit before tax would
increase/{decrease) by (£258,000)/£286,000 (2011 - (£268,000)/£297,000)

Derwvative Financial instruments

In pnor penods the group entered into contracts to purchase electnicity These contracts contained clauses which met the definiticn of a
dervative At the point of inthial recognition the denvative had no value and as the contracts ended during the year there was no derwvative at
the balance sheet date Dunng the pnor year the Statement of Comprehensive Income was credited with £1,053,000 under the heading Cost of
Sales This amount reflected the additional rebates as a result of higher than predicted usage There has been no contract of this nature relating
to the current year

Fair value
Unless otherwise indicated, the carrying amounts of the group’s financial instruments are a reasonable approximation of therr fair values

Annual Report 2012




Five Year Financial History — unaudited

For the years ended 31st March 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Trading results

Revenue 126,271 105,368 60,649 84,812 97,372

Profit before tax 23,003 15,501 9,804 3,616 16,664

Profit after tax 17,591 11,652 7.638 622 11,996

Dividends 4,778 4,363 4,362 4,363 4,210

Balance sheet summary

Equity

Share capital 4,363 4,363 4,363 4,363 4,363
Reserves 88,241 75,752 68,872 69,314 73,494
Total equity 92,604 80,115 73,235 73,677 77,857
Assets

Property, plant and equipment 62,226 55,889 51,596 53,408 38,772
Financial assets 495 467 480 429 736

Deferred tax asset - — — -— -

82,721 56,356 52,076 53,837 39,508
Current assets 57.306 56,065 41,685 37,059 61,136
Total habities (27,423) (32,306) (20.526) (17.219) (22,787)

92,604 80,115 73,235 73,677 77,857
Dmwndends and earnings
Pence per share paid 100 100 100 100 100
Nurnber of times covered a7 27 17 - 28
Earnings per share — basic and diluted 40 32p 26 71p 17 51p 143p 27 49p
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Parent Company Accounts Under UK GAAP

As noted on page 18, the company has elected to prepare its financial statements under UK GAAP

Parent Company Balance Sheet

31st March 2012
2012 2011
Notes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 16,342 11,809
Investments 5,776 5,749
22,118 17,558
Current assets
Stocks 6 5,319 7,536
Debtors 7 25,475 25,328
Short-term cdeposits 12,878 10,516
Cash at bank and in hand 217 217
43,889 43,597
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year B 14,077 14,793
Net current assets 29,812 28,804
Total assets less current liabilities 51,930 46,362
Provisions for habilities 9 (594) (494)
51,336 45,868
Caprtal and reserves
Called up share capital 10 4,363 4,363
Share premium 11 874 874
Other reserve 1 13 13
Retaned earmings n 46,088 40618
Shareholders' funds 51,336 45,868

The parent company accounts on pages 45 to 51 were approved and authonsed for issue by the board of directors on 20 June 2012, and

were signed on its behalf by

-
1
B J Cooke Chairman / jﬂ o

S J Mant Finance Director é : l §

Notes to the accounts are on pages 46 to 51
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Notes to the Parent Company Accounts

The Directors’ Report 1s on pages 5 to 8 of the Annual Report and Accounts

1 Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The accounis are prepared under
the historical cost convention except
for revaluation of certain financial
nstruments as required by FRS 26
and in accordance with applicable
UK Accounting Standards and the
Companies Act 2006.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-
hng basis to wnite off the inibal cost of fixed
assets at the following rates per annum

® Buildings 2%
® Plant and other
equipment 7% to 33%

Freehold land 1s not depreciated

Pension costs

The cost of providing retirement pensions
and related benefits 1s charged to the
profit and loss account over the penods
benefiting from the employees’ services
in accordance with FRS 17 Where
defined benefit pension schemes are
multi-employer schemes and 1t 15 not
possible to identify the company's share
of assets and lhabilities of those schemes
on a reasonable and consistent basis, the
company contnbutions payable to those
schemes dunng the year are charged to
the profit and loss account

Turnover

Turnover 15 the aggregate of the invoiced
values of sales (less returns and allowances)
charged to external customers of the
company, excluding wvalue added tax
Turnover 15 recognised when goods are
dispatched

Stocks

Stock and work in progress have been
consistently valued at the lower of cost
and ret realsable value The valuation
of work in progress and fimshed stocks
includes appropnate manufactunng and
works overheads computed on the basis
of normal activity

Foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rate of exchange ruling
at the balznce sheet date Transactions
in foreign currencies are recorded at the
rate ruling at the date of the transaction,
all differences being taken to the profit and
loss account

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of
alt tming differences that have onginated
but not reversed at the balance sheet date
where transactions or events that result in
an obligation to pay more tax in the future
or a nght to pay less tax i the future have
occurred at the balance sheet date Timing
differences are differences between the
company's taxable profits and its results
as stated in the accounts

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average
tax rates that are expected to apply in the
periods in which the timing differences
are expected {o reverse, based on tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-
discounted basis

Investments

Listed investments are accounted for
at far value in accordance with FRS 26
‘Financial  Instruments  Measurement’
Investments 1n subsidianes are held at
cost and reviewed for impairment annually

Financial tnstruments

a) Financial assets

The company's financial assets relate
to loans and recevables Although
the group occasionally uses denvative
financial mstruments in economic hedges
of currency rate risk, it does not hedge
account for these transactions and the
amounts are not matenal The group has
not classified any of its financial assets as
held to matunty

Avalable-for-sale assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
comprise the company's strategic
investments In entities not qualifying as
subsidianes They are carried at far value
with changes In fair value recognised
directly Iin the statement of comprehensive
income Far value 1s determined with
reference to published quoted pnces in an
active market

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-denvative financial
assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market They anse pnncipally through
the provision of goods and services to
customers {(eg trade recewvables and
amounts owed by subsidtary comparues)
and deposits held at banks and building
societies, but may also incorporate other
types of contractual monetary asset
They are initially recogrised at far value
plus transaction costs that are directly
attnbutable to the acquisition or issue and
subsequently carned at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method,
less provision for impairment

The effect of discounting on these
financial instruments 1s not considered to
be matenal
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Impairment provisions are recognised
when there 1s objective evidence (such as
significant financial difficutties on the part
of the counterparty or default or significant
delay in payment) that the group will be
unable to collect all of the amounts due
under the terms receivable, the amount
of such a provision being the difference
between the net carrying amount and
the present value of the future expected
cash flows associated with the impaired
receivable For trade receivables, such
provisions are recorded in a separate
allowance account with the loss being
recognised within administrative expenses
in the Income statement On confirmation
that the trade recewable will not be
collectable, the gross carrying value of the
asset 1s written off against the associated
provision

b) Financial habibties

The group classifies its financial habilities
Into habiites measured at amortised
cost Although the group uses derwvative
financial mstruments i econcmic hedges
of currency nsk, it does not hedge account
for these transactions and the amounts
are not matenal

Unless otherwise indicated, the carrying
amounts of the group’s financial habilities
are a reasonable approximation of ther
fair values
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Financial liabilties measured at
amortised cost

Financial habilities include trade payables
and other short-term monetary habilities,
which are mmihially recognised at fair value
and subsequently carned at amortised
cost using the effective interest method

Far value s calculated discounting
estimated future cash flows using a market
rate of interest

c) Share capital

The group's ordinary shares are classified
as equity instruments The group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements Share capital includes the
nominal value of the shares and any share
premium attaching to the shares

Diwidends

Equity dwvidends are recognised when
they become legally payable Intenm
equity dwmidends are recognised when
patd Final equity dividends are recogrised
when approved by the shareholders at an
Annua General Meeting

Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of
the exemption conferred by Financial
Reporting Standard 8 ‘Related party
disclosures’ not to disclose transactions
with members of the group on the grounds
that 100% of the voting nghts In the
company are controlled within that group
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Notes to the Parent Company Accounts

The Directors’ Report 1s an pages 5 to 8 of the Annual Report and Accounts

2 Company profit and loss account

Castings PL. C has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not included its own profit and loss account in these
accounts The company's profit after tax was £10,218,000 (2011 — £4,722,000)

The profit and loss account includes £25,000 (2011- £25,000) for audit fees

3 Duvidends

Final paid of 8 0O4p per share for the year ended 31st March 2011 (2011 - 7 29p)

Interim pard of 2 91p per share (2011 -2 71p)

2012
£000

3,508
1,270

4,778

2011
£000

3,181
1,182

4,363

The directors are proposing a final dwvidend of 8 B4 pence (2011 — 8 04 pence) per share totalling £3,858,820 (2011 - £3,508,000) This

dividend has not been accrued at the balance sheet date

4 Fmed assets

Cost
At 1st Apnl 2011
Additions during year

At 31st March 2012

Depreciation and amounts wntten off
At 1st Apnl 2011

Charge for year

At 31st March 2012

Net book values

At 31st March 2012
At 31st March 2011

Land and
buidings
£000

10,528
5,130

15,658
2,143
270
2,413

13,245
8,385

Plant

and other
equipment
£000

24,104
252

24,356
20,680

579
21,259

3,097
3.424

Total
£000

34,632
5,382

40,014

22,823
849

23,672

16,342
11,809

The net book value of land and buildings includes £2,127,000 (2011 - £2,127,000) for land which is not depreciated The cost of land and
builldings includes £359,000 for property held on long leases (2011 - £359,000)
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5 Investrments

2012 2011
9000 £000
Subsidiary companies
At cost 5,281 5,281
Listed irvestments at market value 495 468

5,776 5,749

The company owns 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Witham Lee Limited, CNC Speedwell imited and WH Booth & Co Limited, companies
which operate i the Urited Kingdom Willam Lee Limited supples spheroidal graphite iron castings from Dronfield, Sheffield and CNC
Speedwell Limited 1s a machinist operation WH Booth & Co Limited does not trade and is dormant

During the year the company disposed of listed investments of £nil (2011 - £12,000) and the change in fair value taken to equity 15 £27,000
(2011 — £rul)

& Stocks
2012 2011
£000 £000
Raw matenals 884 1,019
Work in progress 1,809 2,462
Firished goods 2,626 4,055
5,319 7,536
7 Debtors
2012 201
£000 £000
Due within one year
Trade debtors 15,733 14,797
Amounts owed by subsidiary companies 4,012 4,286
Other debtors 1,224 3,309
Prepayments and accrued income 4,506 2,936
25,475 25,328
8 Creditors
2012 2011
£000 £000
Due within one year
Trade creditors 5,063 7,021
Amounts owed to subsidiary companies 3.272 2,498
Corporation tax 2,009 926
Other taxation and social secunty 1,003 885
Other creditors 92 101
Accruals and deferred income 2,638 3,362

14,077 14,793
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Notes to the Parent Company Accounts

continued

9 Prowisions for habiltties

Deferred taxation

At 1st Apnl 2011

Taxation deferred this year

At 31st March 2012

Deferred tax 1s provided as follows

Accelerated capital allowances
Other timing differences

10 Called up share caprstal

Authonsed 50,000,000 10p ordinary shares
Allotted and fully paid 43,632,068 10p ordinary shares

11 Reserves

At 1st Apnl 2011
Profit retained
Changes n farr value of investments

At 31st March 2012

2012 2011

£000 £000

494 181

100 313

594 494

612 668

(18) (174}

504 494

2012 2011

£000 £000

5,000 5,000

4,363 4,363

Share Share Other Retained Total

capital premum reserve earnings equity

£0C0 £000 £000 £000 £000

4,363 874 13 40,618 45,868

- - - 5,440 5,440

- - - 28 28

4,363 874 13 46,086 51,336
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12 Reconcihiation of movements in shareholders’ funds

2012 201

£000 £000
Profit for the year 10,218 4,722
Changes in fair value of investments 28 -
Diwvidends {4,778) {4,363}
Net increase to shareholders’ funds 5,468 359
Cpening shareholders' funds 45,868 45,509
Clesing shareholders' funds 51,336 45,868

13 Pensions
It 1s not possible to identify the company’s share of the underlying assets and habiities in respect of the group defined benefit schemes
on a consistent and reasonable basis Contnbutions to the schemes by the company are based on professicnal and independent actuanal
advice During the year the contrbutions payable by the company to the funds amounted to £nit (2011 — Emil) The last valeation was
performed with an effective date of 6th Apnl 2011 Further detalls of the schemes are contamned in note 6 of the consolidated accounts of
Castings PL C

14 Caprtal commitments

2012 2011
£000 £000
Authonsed, but not provided (n the accounts — 14

Annual Report 2012 .
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Notice of Meeting

Notice Is hereby given that the one hundred
and third Annual General Meeting of Castings
PLC (the ‘Company’) will be held at Holiday
Inn, Birmingham M6, Junc 7, Chapel Lane,
Great Barr, Brmungham, West Midlands, B43
7BG, on Tuesday 14th August at 3 30 pm for
the following purpeses
As ordinary business
1 To receive and adopt the directors’
report and audited accounts for the year
ended 31st March 2012
To declare a final dividend
3 To re-elect Mr D J Gawthorpe as a
director
To elect Mr A Vicary as a director
To elect Mr AN .Jones as a director
To approve the directors' remuneration
report for the year ended 31st March
2012
7 Toreappoint BDO LLF as auditors of the

Company at a fee to be agreed with the
directors

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the
following resolutions, of which resolution 8
will be proposed as an ordinary resolution
and resolutions 9 and 10 will be proposed
as special resolutions

The share capital consists of 43,632,068
ordinary shares with voting nghts

As an ordinary resolution
8 THAT

(a) the drrectors be and are hereby
generally and unconditionally
authonsed n accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 to exercise
all the powers of the Company to
allot relevant securties provided
that the aggregate nominal value
of such secunties shall not exceed
£636,793, which represents
approximately 146% of the
current 1ssued share capital of the
Company,

)

—

the foregoing authonty shall expire
on 16th August 2015 save that the
Company may before such expiry

make an offer or enter into an
agreement which would or might
require relevant secunties to be
allotted after the expiry of such
pencd and the directors may allot
relevant secunties N pursuance
of any such offer or agreement as
if the authority conferred had not
expired,

{c) the foregoing authonty shall be
in substitution for the authorities
given to the directors under the
Compares Act 2006 on 16th
August 2011, which authonties are
accordingly hereby revoked,

{d) this authonty will be put to annual
shareholder approval

As special business

As special resolutions

9 THAT the directors be and are hereby
empowered pursuant to the Companies
Act 2006 to allot equity secunties
{within the meaning of that Act) for
cash pursuant to the general authonty
conferred by the ordinary resoluticn
numbered & set out in the notice
convering thus meeting as if the sad
Act did not apply to any such allotment
provided that thus power shall be limited

(a) to allotments in connection with
an offer of equity securties to
the ordinary shareholders of the
Company where the secunties
respectively attnbutable to the
interests  of such holders are
proporticnate (as nearly as may
be and subject to such exclusions
or other arrangement as the
directors may consider appropriate,
necessary or expedient to deal with
any fractional entittements or with
any legal or practicat difficulties
In respect of overseas holders
or otherwise) to the respective
numbers of ordinary shares then
held by such shareholders, and

(!

~

to the aflotment (otherwise than
pursuant to subparagraph {(a) of

this resolution) of equity secunties
having, In the case of relevant
shares, an aggregate nomnal
amount, or, In the case of other
equity secunties, giving the nght to
subscribe for or convert into relevant
shares having an aggregate nominal
amount not exceeding £218,160,
which represents approximately 5%
of the current 1ssued share capial
of the Company,

and shall expire at the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting following the date
of this resolution save that the Company
shall be entitled before such expiry to
make an offer or agreement which would
or might require equity securities to be
allotted after such expiry and the directors
shall be entitled to allot equity secunties
in pursuance of such offer or agreement
as if the power conferred hereby had not
expired In any three year period no more
than 7 5% of the 1ssued share capital will be
1ssued on a pre-emptive basis
10 THAT the Company be and 1s hereby
generally and unconditionally authonsed
for the purposes of the Companes
Act 2006 to make one or more market
purchases of any of its ordinary shares
of 10p each (the ‘ordinary shares’),
provided that
(a) the maximum number of ordinary
shares hereby authorised to be
purchaseds 4,358,844 representing
9 99% of the 1ssued share capital at
31st March 2012,

{b) the rmuinimum prnice which may be
paid for each ordinary share 1s
10p, exclusive of the expenses of
purchase,

{c} the maximum pnce (exclusive of
expenses) which may be pad for
each ordinary share 15 an amount
equal to 105% of the average of
the muddie market quotations for
the ordinary shares as denved from
the Daily Official List of the London
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Stock Exchange Limited for the
five business days immediately
preceding the day of purchase,

(d) unless previously revoked or
vaned, the authonty hereby
corferred shall expire at the
conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company
following the date of this
resolution, unless such authonty 1s
renewed on or pror to such date,

{e} the Company may, before the
explry of this authonty, conclude
a contract to purchase ordinary
shares under this authonty which
will or may be executed wholly
or partly after such expiry and
may make a purchase of ordinary
shares pursuant to any such
contract, as if such authonty had
not expired

The record date for payment of the final
dividend 1s 20th July 2012 Assuming
the final dwvidend 15 approved by the
members, the dwvdend will be paid on
17th August 2012

Information about the meetng can be
found on the Cormpany's website (www
castings plc uk) The nght to vote at the
meeting 15 determined by reference to
the register of members as 1t stands on
10th August 2012 Shareholders have the
nght to ask questions at the meeting

By order of the board
S J Mant
Company Secretary

Registered Office

Lichfield Road,

Brownhills,

West Midlands, WS8 6JZ2

20th June 2012
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Note

Any member of the Company entitled
to attend and vote at this meeting may
appoint one or more proxies, who need
not also be a member, to attend and vote,
on a poll, in his stead The instrument
appointing a proxy, including authonty
under which 1t 1S signed (or a notanally
certified copy of such authonty), must be
deposited at the offices of the Company’s
registrars Capita Registrars, PXS,
34 Beckenham Road, Kent, BR3 4TU,
not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for the meeting

Beneficial owners:

In accordance with Section 325 of the
Companies Act 2006, the right to appoint
proxies does not apply to persons
neminated to receive information rights
under section 146 of the Act

Persons nominated to receive information
rnghts under section 146 of the Act who
have been sent a copy of this notice
of meeting are hereby informed, in
accordance with Section 149 (2) of the
Act, that they may have a nght under an
agreement with the registered member
by whom they were nominated to be
appointed, or to have someone else
appointed, as a proxy for this meeting If
they have no such nght, or do not wish to
exercise it, they may have a nght undar
such an agreement to give instructions to
the member as to the exercise of voting
nights

Nomtnated persons should contact
the registered member by whom they
were nomunated n respect of these
arrangements

In Accordance with Regulation 41 of the
Uncertified Secunties Regulations 2001,
only those members entered on the
Company's register of members at 6 00
pm on the day which is two days before
the day of the meeting or, If the meeting
15 adjourned, shareholders entered on the
Company's register of members at 6 00
pm on the day two days before the date
of any adjournment shall be entitled to
attend and vote at the meeting




Directors,
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Directors

Secretary and
Registered Office
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Auditors
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Bankers
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Registered No.
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G Cooper Managing Director, William Lee Ltd

A Vicary, BEng MSc Managmg Director, Brownhills
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S J Mant, FCA
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Tel 01543 374341

Fax 01543 377483

Web www castings plc uk
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Tel 0B71 664 0300 (Calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras,
lines are open 8 30 am to 5 30 pm Mon—Fri)

Fax 020 B658 3430

BDO LLP

Chartered Accountants
125 Colmore Row,
Birmingham, B3 38D

Enoch Evans LLP

St Paul's Chambers,

6/9 Hatherton Road,
Walsall,

West Midlands, WS1 1XS

Pinsent Masons LLP
3 Colmore Circus,
Birmingham, B4 6BH

HSBC Bank pic

High Street,

Brownhills,

West Midlands, WS8 6HJ

Arden Partners plc
Arden House,
Highfield Road,
Edgbaston,
Burmingham, 815 30U
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Shareholder

Information

Capital gains tax

The official price of Castings PL C ordinary
shares on 31st March 1982, adjusted for
bonus issues, was 4 92 pence

Warning to shareholders
The following guidance has been issued
by the Financial Services Authonty

Over the last year many companies have
become aware that ther shareholders
have received unsolicited phone calls or
correspondence concerming Investment
matters These are typically from
overseas-based ‘brokers’ who target UK
shareholders offenng to sell them what
often turned out to be worthless or high
nsk shares in US or UK investments They
can be very persistent and extremely
persuasive and a 2006 survey by the
Financial Services Authonty {FSA) has
reported that the average amount lost by
investors 1s around £20,000 It s not just
the novice investor that has been duped
in this way, many of the victims had been
successfully \nvesting for several years
Shareholders are advised to be very
wary of any unsolicited adwvice, offers to
buy shares at a discount or offers of iree
reports into the company

If you receive any unsolicited investrment
adwvice

@ Make sure you get the correct name of
the person and organisation

® Check that they are propery
authonsed by the FSA before getting
invelved You can check at www fsa
gov uk/register

® The FSA also maintains on its website
a list of unauthonsed overseas firms
who are targeting, or have targeted,
UK investors and any approach
from such organisations should be
reported to the FSA so that this hst
can be kept up to date and any other
appropnate action ¢an be constdered
If you deal with an unauthonsed firm,
you would not be ehgible to recewe
payment under the Financial Services

Annual Report 2012

Compensation Scheme The FSA can
be contacted by completing an online
form at

www {sa gov uk/pages/doing/regulated/
law/alerts/overseas shtml

® |If the calls persist, hang up

More detailed information on this or sirrular
activity can be found on the FSA website
www moneymadeclear fsa govuk

Website

Castings PL C's website www castings
plc uk gives additienal information on the
group Notwithstanding the references
we make in this Annual Report fo
Castings PL C's webslte, none of the
inforrmation made avallable on the website
constitutes part of this Annual Report or
shall be deemed to be mcorporated by
reference herein
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